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Our purpose

To reduce the health impact
of our business by offering
a greater choice of viable
and less risky products
We are clear that combustible cigarettes pose serious health risks.
The only way to avoid these risks is not to start or to quit. However,
we encourage those who would otherwise continue to smoke
to switch completely to scientifically-substantiated, reduced-risk
alternatives.*
In order to deliver this, BAT is transforming into a truly consumercentric multi-category consumer products business.

Consumer
Moments

Multi-Category
Portfolio

Consumer
Digital Insights

Consumer
Centricity

Digitally
Embedded
RGM

Product
Boundaries

Product
Satisfaction
Index

* Based on the weight of evidence and assuming a complete switch from cigarette smoking. These products are not risk free and are addictive.
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BRITISH AMERICAN TOBACCO UGANDA LIMITED
2020 ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This is the Annual Report and Financial Statements (Annual Report) of British American Tobacco Uganda Limited (BAT
Uganda), comprising the Strategic Report, the Governance Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
This Annual Report has been drawn up and is presented in accordance with, and reliance upon, applicable Ugandan
company and capital markets law including the Companies Act 2012, Capital Markets Corporate Governance Guidelines
2003 and the Uganda Securities Exchange Listing Rules 2021. The liabilities of Directors in connection with this Report
shall be subject to the limitations and restrictions provided by such law.
A printed copy of the Annual Report is posted to shareholders on the mail register who have elected to receive it. The
Report is also emailed to those shareholders who have at any previous time indicated their email addresses. A digital
copy can also be accessed on the website of the Uganda Securities Exchange: www.use.or.ug.
References in this publication to ‘the Company’, ‘BAT Uganda’, ‘the Business’ ‘we’, ‘us’ and ‘our’ when denoting opinion,
refers to British American Tobacco Uganda Limited.

Cautionary statement

The material in this Annual Report is provided for the purpose of giving information about BAT Uganda to adult
shareholders and is not provided for tobacco or nicotine product advertising, promotional or marketing purposes. This
material does not constitute and should not be construed as constituting an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to
buy any of our tobacco or nicotine products. Our products are sold in compliance with the laws of Uganda.
The Strategic Report and certain other sections of the Annual Report contain forward-looking statements that are
subject to risk factors associated with, amongst other things, the changing economic and business dynamics affecting
the Uganda market.
It is believed that the expectations reflected in these statements are reasonable, but they may be affected by a wide
range of variables that could cause actual results to differ materially from those currently anticipated.

ABOUT US

BAT Uganda is a member of the BAT Group, a leading, multi-category consumer goods business, with brands sold
in more than 180 markets. BAT began operations in Uganda in 1928. BAT Uganda has been listed on the Uganda
Securities Exchange (USE) since 2000 and has 1,234 shareholders, of whom approximately 1,200 are local (East African)
shareholders. The Company is in the business of distribution and sale of cigarettes in Uganda.
We are a strong, forward-looking Company with a proven strategy that is delivering value for our shareholders. BAT
Uganda’s diverse strengths - our strong heritage, our strong brands, our new product innovations and our talented
people – are the foundation of our continuing success.
We contribute to Uganda’s socio-economic growth in various ways, including through our partnerships with over
30,000 trade and business partners in our supply chain and as one of Uganda’s largest taxpayers. We are also a
signatory to the UN Global Compact’s Women Empowerment Principles (WEPs). The WEPs are a set of principles
offering guidance on how to promote gender equality and women’s empowerment in the workplace, marketplace,
and community.
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Notice of the 2021 Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 21st Annual General Meeting (AGM) of British American Tobacco Uganda
Limited (BAT Uganda) will be held via electronic communication on Thursday, 27 May 2021 at 10:00am for the
purpose of considering, and if thought fit, passing the resolutions set out below. Shareholders have a chance to ask
questions in advance of the meeting in the manner set out below.
Ordinary Business
1. To receive, consider and if approved, adopt the Company’s audited Financial Statements for the year ended
31 December 2020, together with the reports of the Chairman, Directors and External Auditor thereon.
2. To approve a Final Dividend of Ushs 406 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2020 to be paid
net of Withholding Tax, on 21 June 2021 to shareholders on the Company’s share register at the close of
business on 31 May 2021.
3. To elect Directors in place of those retiring in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association:
a) Hon. Elly Karuhanga (74) and Fred Tumwesigye (75) who were appointed to the Board in July 2013
and April 2001 respectively, retire by reason of age in accordance with Article 88(d) and Article 89 of the
Articles of Association of the Company, and being eligible offer themselves for re-election; and
b) Kirunda Magoola who was appointed to the Board in August 2020, retires by reason of having been
appointed by the Directors to fill a casual vacancy in accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, and being eligible offers himself for re-election.
c) Philemon Kipkemoi retires by rotation in accordance with Articles 86 and 89 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.
4. To re-appoint KPMG Certified Public Accountants to continue in office as External Auditor of the Company
and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2021.
Special Business
5. To consider and if appropriate, pass the following Special Resolution:
“That the existing Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company be deleted in their entirety and
replaced with the new amended Memorandum and Articles of Association attached as Annexure 1 to this
notice.”
Any Other Business
6. To consider any other business of which due notice has been given.
By Order of the Board

Nicholas Ecimu
S & L Advocates
(formerly Sebalu & Lule Advocates)

Company Secretary

3 May 2021
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NOTES:
1.

Owing to the ongoing Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic and the related public health regulations and directives passed
by the Government of Uganda including those restricting public meetings, the Company will conduct the 2021 AGM by
electronic means in accordance with Article 51 (b) of the Articles of Association.

2. Shareholders wishing to participate in the meeting should register for the AGM by dialing *284*36# on their mobile telephone
and follow the various prompts on the registration process.
3. To complete the registration process, shareholders will need to provide their National ID/Passport Numbers which were used to
purchase their shares and/or their SCD Account Number/Share Certificate Number. For assistance, shareholders should dial the
following helpline number: +256 417 701 000 from 9:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday to Friday, or send an email to shareholders@
deloitte.co.ug for assistance during registration.
4. Registration for the AGM opens on Monday, 3 May 2021 at 9:00 a.m. and will close on Tuesday, 25 May 2021 at 5.00 p.m.
Shareholders will not be able to register after this time.
5. The following documents may be viewed on the website of the Uganda Securities Exchange, www.use.or.ug: (a) a copy of this
Notice and the proxy form; (b) the Company’s Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 and (c) a copy of the proposed amended Memorandum and Articles of Association.
6. Any shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote. Such proxy
need not be a member of the Company.
7. A proxy form is provided in the Annual Report. The proxy form can also be obtained by contacting the Company’s share
registrars: Deloitte (Uganda) Limited (Deloitte) via email: shareholders@deloitte.co.ug. All completed proxy forms should be
returned to Deloitte by email or physical delivery to their offices at Rwenzori House, 3rd Floor, Lumumba Avenue, Kampala, or
by delivery to the Company’s head office, no later than 2:30 p.m. on 25 May 2021.
8. Shareholders wishing to raise any questions or clarifications regarding the AGM may do so on or before
25 May 2021 at 2:30 p.m., by sending their written questions accompanied by a return address, via email to shareholders@
deloitte.co.ug or delivering to the Company’s Head Office.
Shareholders must provide their full details i.e. name, ID/Passport Number, SCD Account Number when submitting their
questions and or clarifications.
Written responses to the questions will be provided no later than 12 hours before the start of the AGM. A full list of all questions
and answers will be published on the USE’s website, www.use.org not later than 12 hours before the start of the AGM.
9. The AGM will be streamed live via a link, which shall be provided to all shareholders who will have successfully registered to
attend the AGM. Duly registered shareholders and proxies will receive a short message service (SMS/USSD) prompt on their
registered mobile numbers, 24 hours prior to the AGM acting as a reminder of the AGM. A second SMS/USSD prompt shall be
sent one hour ahead of the AGM and providing a link to the live stream. In registering to attend the AGM, a shareholder opts in
to receive these messages.
10. Duly registered shareholders and proxies may access the AGM agenda and follow the proceedings via the livestream platform.
Duly registered shareholders and proxies may vote (when prompted by the Chairman) via the USSD prompts as well as through
the VOTE tab on the livestream link.
11. A poll shall be conducted for all the resolutions put forward in the notice.
12. Results of the resolutions voted on will be published on USE’s website, www.use.or.ug within 24 hours following conclusion of
the AGM.
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Explanatory notes to resolutions to be passed
Agenda Item 1:
Report and Financial Statements 2020
Resolution 1:
THAT the Report of the Directors and the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, as audited and
reported by the Company’s External Auditor now submitted to this meeting be and are hereby approved and adopted.
Agenda Item 2:
Declaration of final dividend
Resolution 2:
THAT a final dividend of Ushs 406 per ordinary share net of Withholding Tax, to be paid on 21 June 2021 to Shareholders
on the Register at the close of business on 31 May 2021 be and is hereby approved.
Agenda Item 3:
Directors seeking re-election pursuant to Article 89
Resolution 3 (a):
THAT Hon. Dr. Elly Karuhanga (74) and Fred Tumwesigye (75) retire by reason of age in accordance with Article 88 (d)
and 89 of the Articles of Association, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors.
Resolution 3 (b):
THAT Kirunda Magoola retires in accordance with Article 92 of the Articles of Association, having been appointed by
the Board after the last Annual General Meeting to fill a casual vacancy, and being eligible, offers himself for re-election
as a Director.
Resolution 3 (c):
THAT Philemon Kipkemoi retires by rotation in accordance with Articles 86 and 89 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.
Agenda Item 4:
Re-Appointment of the Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration
Resolution 4:
KPMG Certified Public Accountants (KPMG) has expressed its willingness to continue in office as the Company’s
External Auditor. It is proposed that Messrs KPMG be re-appointed as the External Auditor of the Company and that
the Directors be authorised to fix their remuneration for the financial year ending 31 December 2021.
Agenda Item 5:
Amendment of the Memorandum and Articles of Association
Resolution 5:
Amended Memorandum and Articles of Association:
THAT the existing Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company be deleted in their entirety and replaced
with the new amended Articles of Association attached as Annexure 1 hereto.
In light of the changing regulatory environment, prevailing situation arising from the COVID-19 pandemic or other
unforeseen special circumstances with the potential to restrict/prevent normal Company operations, there is a need
to review and update the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association to provide for continued business
operations during such times and modernize the Articles of Association.
Changes in the Memorandum and Articles of Association are highlighted for easier perusal. The amended document
will be available for review on the USE’s website: www.use.or.ug. A copy of the draft Amended Memorandum and
Articles of Association can also be inspected at the BAT Uganda’s head office at the following address: 10th Floor, Lotis
Towers, Plot 16, Mackinnon Road, Nakasero, P.O. Box 7100, Kampala, Uganda.
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Chairman’s
Statement

Despite a challenging
trading environment, the
Business has been able to
deliver a solid set of
underlying results and
continues to deliver value
for our shareholders.
Hon. Dr. Elly Karuhanga
Chairman

Strategic Report

Introduction

Welcome to our Annual Report
for the year ended 31 December
2020. I am pleased to report that
the Company delivered solid
results despite a particularly
challenging trading environment.
During 2020, the Board focused
on addressing challenges within
our operating environment,
notably those arising as a result
of the novel Coronavirus 19
(COVID-19) pandemic, as well as
those related to the introduction
of Graphic Health Warnings on
cigarette product packaging.
Despite these challenges, the
Business has been able to
deliver a solid set of underlying
results and continues to deliver
value for our shareholders.
This is reflected in the Board of
Directors’ recommendation of
a final dividend of Ushs 406 per
Ordinary Share, to be approved
by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting on 27 May 2021.
The dividend, which is subject
to Withholding Tax, will be paid
on 21 June 2021 to shareholders
on the register at the close of
business on 31 May 2021.

Celebrating 20 years on the
USE
In June 2020, BAT Uganda
celebrated 20 years of being
listed on the Uganda Securities
Exchange (USE) and 92 years
since the Company commenced
operations in Uganda.

For the first time ever, we also
held an Investor Briefing for local
and international representatives
of the financial markets and
investment community. The
session provided participants
with deeper knowledge and
understanding of the Business
and gave us an opportunity
to address matters that are
important to them. We will
continue to engage with our
stakeholders through such
events, as far as is possible.

We are proud of our heritage
as a truly Ugandan company
and remain committed to
being part of the economic and
social development of Uganda,
as we look forward to playing
a significant role in delivering
A Better Tomorrow for our
stakeholders.

Unprecedented challenges
in the market
Navigating the COVID-19
pandemic
Whilst the health impacts of
COVID-19 have been substantial,
the resulting economic strife
has been equally significant. In
Uganda, many businesses shut
their doors and international
borders closed, impacting
domestic and international
trading activity. The shrinking of
economic activity in 2020 mainly
due to the impacts of COVID-19
was compounded by increasing
political uncertainty and the
strain from global and regional
spill over effects.
According to the Uganda
Economic Update, 16th Edition,
released by the World Bank in
December 2020, Uganda’s GDP
grew by 2.9% in 2020, less than
half of the 6.8% recorded in 2019.
The macro environment was
characterised by widespread
business closures, job losses and
a rapid slowdown of economic
activity particularly in the urban
informal sector. The report further
indicates that the impacts of
the COVID-19 pandemic are
threatening to reverse some of
the gains made on structural
transformation and the declining
poverty trend of the past decade.
The fall in household incomes
was and still is a major concern
given the high level of the
country’s vulnerability to poverty.
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Unabated illicit trade and
unbalanced enforcement of
tobacco control regulations
A market strained by unabated
illicit trade in cigarettes
The illicit trade in cigarettes
continues to be a substantial
threat to the legitimate tobacco
industry as well as Government
revenues. Uganda’s illicit trade
incidence has grown at a steady
rate over the last few years,
standing at a record 17.4% at the
end of 2020, up from 13.9% in 2019
(Trade Monitor Uganda, TNS RMS
East Africa Ltd).
We are concerned that, despite
the enhanced border controls put
in place to mitigate the spread
of COVID-19, our trade teams
continue to report an increased
presence of illegal tax-evaded
cigarettes in the Ugandan market,
primarily tax-evaded cigarettes
from Kenya. This is consistent
with third party research
conducted at the end of last year,
which indicates that about 44%
of illicit cigarettes sold in Uganda
have been smuggled across
the Kenyan border. Evidently,
border enforcement alone is not
sufficient to curtail the illicit trade
in cigarettes, which continues to
deny the Government in excess of
Ushs 30 billion every year.
As part of our continued effort
and commitment to build
a sustainable business and
contribute to Uganda’s economic
development, we continue
to engage and collaborate
transparently with the relevant
Government agencies to support
the fight against illicit trade in
cigarettes. In 2020, we executed
various initiatives including
collaboration with the Uganda
Revenue Authority and relevant
law enforcement agencies.
Moving ahead into 2021, we
call upon the Government to
redouble enforcement of anti-
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illicit trade regulations. This enhanced action includes cooperation between Uganda and Kenya officials
in stemming the flow of illicit cigarettes into Uganda, which requires identification of the source of these
illegal products and their supply routes. We also reiterate our call to the Government to ratify the World
Health Organisation (WHO) Framework Convention on Tobacco Control (FCTC) Protocol to Eliminate Illicit
Trade in Tobacco Products (ITP).
Unbalanced enforcement of tobacco control regulations
We support regulation that is balanced and evidence-based, achieved thorough a credible and transparent
consultative process. As such, BAT was compliant with the Graphic Health Warning labelling requirements
under the Tobacco Control Regulations, by December 2020. However, it is evident that other tobacco
manufacturers continue to openly flout these regulations with no repercussions. We therefore call upon the
Government to address this critical issue and ramp up enforcement measures to ensure a fully compliant
and fair operating environment in the tobacco industry.

Board changes

The composition of our Board continues to evolve as we take deliberate steps to build a future-fit business.
2020 saw the appointment of Kirunda Magoola as BAT Uganda’s Managing Director effective 1 August
2020, following the departure of Mathu Kiunjuri who stepped down and returned to Nairobi to take up a
new role at BAT Kenya. On behalf of the Board, I take this opportunity to thank Mathu for his outstanding
performance and contribution to BAT Uganda. Under his leadership, the Company delivered significant
growth, delivering sustained value to our shareholders. We wish him the very best in his future endeavours.

Delivering A Better Tomorrow

We believe that a stable regulatory and fiscal environment is crucial for sustainable business and economic
growth. While we support Government efforts and focus on addressing the concerns of the Business
community on economic impacts of COVID-19, addressing the illicit trade in cigarettes will continue to
be a key priority for our business. And while BAT has embarked on a journey to build A Better Tomorrow
by addressing the health impact of its business through providing viable and less risky alternatives to
cigarettes, our traditional tobacco business will be our core focus for the foreseeable future.
BAT Uganda continues to make substantial contribution to the socio-economic development of the
country. This includes through strategic partnerships with over 30,000 Ugandans, and our sustained tax
remittances to the exchequer. In 2020, our contribution to government revenues amounted to Ushs 91
billion, in form of Excise Duty, Value Added Tax and Corporation Tax.
Going forward, it is clear that COVID-19 will persist for a considerable amount of time, presenting significant
challenges for our business as well as many stakeholders in our domestic and regional supply chain.
However, our resolve to overcome these challenges is stronger than ever. On the back of our robust
business continuity plan and set of mitigations – uncertainty notwithstanding - we believe that we are well
positioned for another good year in 2021.
I am proud of the work that the team has done, and commend the Board of Directors, Leadership Team,
employees, strategic partners, shareholders and stakeholders, for their invaluable contribution to our
resilient performance in 2020.

Hon. Dr. Elly Karuhanga
Board Chairman
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Sustainable
At BAT we are proud to be a global leader in sustainability.
But don’t take our word for it.
For the 19th consecutive year, we have been included in the
Dow Jones Sustainability Indices (DJSI) – the gold standard
of tracking an organisation’s environmental, social and
governance practices.
We are the only company in our industry to feature in the DJSI
World Index; the top 10% of global ESG leaders.
This recognition inspires us to keep accelerating towards
building A Better Tomorrow ™.

BAT Group

*
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Managing Director’s
Overview

BAT Uganda’s resilience
in navigating one of the
most challenging and
unprecedented years to
deliver a strong performance,
gives me confidence that
the Business is well poised
to deliver A Better Tomorrow
for its stakeholders.
Kirunda Magoola
Managing Director

Strategic Report

It is approximately nine months
since I was appointed Managing
Director of BAT Uganda. Within
this short period of time, my team
and I have worked diligently to
build on the excellent progress
made under my predecessor,
Mathu Kiunjuri. I am proud of the
team’s hard work and resilience to
deliver a strong set of results for
2020, with excellent growth seen
across all key business metrics.
Over the years BAT Uganda
has invested in the evolution of
internal systems, understanding
our adult consumer needs and
building a purposeful place
to work for our people, whilst
increasing efficiencies across the
value chain. I am happy to report
that we are primed to deliver on
our ambition to build A Better
Tomorrow for our stakeholders.

Strong performance
despite challenging macros
The Company remained resilient
despite a challenging business
environment in the year ended
31 December 2020, exacerbated
by the global COVID-19 pandemic
and overall economic downturn.
Profit from operations increased
by 30% to Ushs 29.1 billion,
attributable to optimal pricing
strategies, an improved product
mix and efficient cost reduction.
The Company registered a 1%
reduction in gross revenue to
Ushs 162 billion, resulting from
a 9% reduction in gross sales,
reflecting the impact of COVID-19
on the purchasing power of
our consumers. Profit after tax
increased by 27% to Ushs 20
billion.

The adverse effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic on Uganda’s
business environment and overall
economy cannot be overstated.
Many businesses suffered
significant financial losses, many
household incomes were greatly
impacted, resulting in a stretched
consumer purse. For the tobacco
industry, this contributed to

heightened illicit trade (taxevaded) in cigarettes, with the
incidence spiking to a new high
of 17.4% at the end of 2020, this,
despite restricted cross-border
movement by government
authorities, as a means to curb
the spread of the COVID-19
pandemic.
We applaud the Government
of Uganda for being cognizant
of the economic downturn
by amongst other measures,
maintaining the Excise Duty rates
for the Financial Year 2020/2021.
We believe that this will help
stimulate the economy and
support recovery from the impact
of the pandemic.
We also continue to advocate
for gradual and predictable
excise increases with a view to
maintaining a stable operating
environment for legitimate
businesses, while mitigating the
adverse impact of illicit trade
on Government and industry
revenues.
Whilst we acknowledge the
role of the Uganda Revenue
Authority’s Digital Tracking
System - which BAT has been
compliant with since March 2020
- in fighting Illicit trade, we appeal
to the government to accelerate
its ratification of the Illicit Trade
Protocol (ITP) under the World
Health Organisation’s Framework
Convention on Tobacco Control.
Amongst other benefits, the
ITP facilitates coordinated and
enhanced implementation of
track and trace measures to
address illicit financial flows
and government tax revenue
leakages.

Consumer focus

We recognise that the consumer
landscape is shifting and, in
order to succeed, we have to
shift with it. 2020 saw the next
stage of investment in our
portfolio transformation, as
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part of efforts to meet the everevolving preferences of our adult
consumers. To that end, one of
our flagship brands, REX, was
transformed to become Dunhill
by REX. We believe that this brand
transformation will enable us to
remain competitive in the market
and deliver even more value to
the consumer through a pipeline
of innovation and investment
from the global Dunhill brand.

A strong employer
proposition

BAT Uganda continues to be an
employer of choice, and we take
pride in our employees, who are
an integral part of our business.
During 2020, the safety of our
employees and their families
was our utmost priority. The
Company implemented various
safety measures to protect its
people in the face of the COVID-19
pandemic, including, providing
the necessary tools to support
remote working for employees
and dissemination of health
awareness information. At our
business premises, we facilitated
social distancing via rotational
work attendance and adhered to
all other Government guidelines.
Delivering excellence for the
consumer demands that we
hire and retain the very best
talent in the market, and I am
delighted with the progress
we have made under the
Purposeful Organisation pillar of
our strategy. A major milestone
for our Diversity and Inclusion
agenda was the appointment of
Maria Mugerwa as the Head of
Finance, bringing us a step closer
to achieving our goal of 50/50
gender representation in the
workplace.
As part of efforts to build a great
place to work for our people,
2020 saw the completion of our
office refurbishment project. Our
Kampala office now boasts of a
modern, vibrant, and inspiring
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environment to enable our energised, collaborative and agile teams to thrive. We will continue to invest in
building a legacy of leaders and contributing to Uganda’s growing pool of Top Talent.

Commitment to long-term sustainability

BAT’s commitment to Uganda is unwavering. This is evidenced by sustained investment in our business
over the last 92 years. On the back of our long history and rich heritage, I am delighted to steer BAT’s step
change in Uganda, driving an evolved strategy which puts a sharper focus on reduced-risk* products,
fuelled by investment from the continued delivery of our traditional tobacco business.
We acknowledge that we are at the start of a long journey to deliver on our tobacco harm reduction
agenda. This is a journey that begins with education and awareness. Our focus in 2021 will be on engaging
transparently with the relevant authorities to advocate for a review of various regulations which we believe
are preventing Uganda from experiencing the global gains of reduced risk* products. We remain firm in
our belief that tobacco harm reduction products - when made legally available to smokers in the same
outlets that cigarettes are sold – can contribute to a reduction in the projected health burden associated
with smoking related diseases in Uganda.

Looking into the future with confidence

BAT Uganda’s resilience in navigating one of the most challenging and unprecedented years to deliver
a strong performance in 2020, gives me confidence that the Business is well poised to deliver A Better
Tomorrow for its stakeholders, including delivering sustained and superior returns for its shareholders. We
shall continue to focus on securing the safety of our people, driving business continuity as the COVID-19
pandemic persists, investing in technology and innovation for the consumer and building a modern and
future-fit business.
The progress made to date and results delivered in 2020 set a good pace for the future. My Management
Team and I are confident that with the right products and the right people, we will continue to meet
the expectations of our shareholders and deliver on our ambition to build A Better Tomorrow for our
stakeholders.

Kirunda Magoola
Managing Director

* Based on the weight of evidence and assuming a complete switch from cigarette smoking. These products are not risk free and are addictive.
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Purpose
At BAT we are proud of the journey we are on to transform
our business.
Our ambition is to accelerate this transformation through
our range of alternative choices for adult consumers, which
are already being used by millions of people worldwide.
Our goal is to continue to focus on our societal responsibilities
and reduce the health impact of our business as we look to
grow this number to 50 million by 2030.
These bold business objectives drive us everyday to continue
building A Better Tomorrow ™.

BAT Group

*
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Our purpose and strategy
In March 2020, BAT unveiled a new strategy and purpose: to build A Better TomorrowTM for our consumers,
shareholders, employees and society. Our ambition is to increasingly transition our business from
cigarettes to alternative and innovative nicotine products that provide consumers with greater choice and
less risk.*
While combustible tobacco will be at the core of our business for some time to come, we aim to accelerate
our ambition to reduce the health impact of our business. This will deliver A Better TomorrowTM for our
consumers who will have a range of viable and less risky* choices for every mood and moment; for society
through reducing the overall health and environmental impact of our business; for our employees by
creating a dynamic and purposeful place to work; and for our shareholders by delivering sustainable
superior returns.

New markets for our new
oral nicotine category

Our Mission

Stimulating the senses of new
adult generations
Today, we see opportunities to
capture consumer moments which
have over time, become limited by
societal and regulatory shifts, and to
satisfy evolving consumer needs and
preferences.
Our mission is to anticipate and
satisfy this ever-evolving consumer:
reduce risk, increase choice and
stimulate the senses of adult
consumers.

Must Wins

How we win

Driven by our unique and data-driven
consumer insights, we will focus on
product categories and consumer
segments across our markets that
have the best potential for long-term
sustainable growth.

As one of the longest-standing and
most established consumer goods
businesses in the world, we have a
unique view of the consumer which
is increasingly driven by powerful
data and analytics. These insights
ensure that the development
and responsible marketing of our
products is fit to meet consumer
needs.

High growth segments

Priority markets

By relying on a rigorous market
prioritisation system, we will focus
the strengths of our unparalleled
retail and marketing reach, on those
markets and marketplaces with the
greatest opportunities for growth.

Inspirational foresights

Remarkable innovation

As consumer preferences and
technology evolve rapidly, we rely
on BAT Group’s global network
of digital hubs, innovation super
centers, world-class R&D laboratories,
external partnerships and upcoming
corporate venturing initiative to stay
ahead of the curve.

* Based on the weight of evidence and assuming a complete switch from cigarette smoking. These products are not risk free and are addictive.
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Our strategy puts the consumer first, focusing on understanding
adult consumer choice and needs. This will enable sustainable, long-term
growth with a clear focus on foresights, innovation, brands and technology.
We will become a business that defines itself not by the products it sells
but by the consumer preferences it meets.
Kirunda Magoola, Managing Director

Viable

R

A

S

Powerful brands

For over a century, we have built
trusted and powerful brands that
resonate with our consumers and
symbolise what they want. We will
focus on fewer, stronger and global
brands across our product categories,
delivered through our deep
understanding and segmenting of
our consumers.

Connected

Staying connected to our over
30,000 trade partners ensures better
consumer connections, access to
markets and innovations that satisfy
consumer needs.

People and partnerships

Our biggest asset is our highlymotivated people whom we are
empowering through a new Ethos
that is responsive to constant
change, embodies a learning
culture and is dedicated to
continuous improvement. But we
cannot succeed on our own, and
our partnerships with suppliers
and traders are key to ensuring
sustainable growth.

OUR PURPOSE
By stimulating the senses of new
adult generations, our vision is to
create A Better TomorrowTM for all our
stakeholders. We will create ‘A Better
TomorrowTM’ for:
Consumers
By responsibly offering them viable
and stimulating choices for every
mood and every moment, today and
tomorrow.
Society
By reducing the health impact of
our business by offering a range of
alternative products, as well as by
reducing our environmental and
social impacts.
Employees
By creating a dynamic, inspiring and
purposeful place to work.
Shareholders
By delivering sustainable and
superior returns.
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Our Group business model
Our business understands our diverse consumers, develops and sells products to meet their preferences.
Six key enablers support us in turning powerful insights into products that meet consumer needs, while
engagement helps our key stakeholders benefit from our sustainable growth.

IP / Technology

Financial

1.8 bnUshs
OpEx

27%

growth in dividend
payout 2020 Vs 2019

spend in 2020

01

Insights

02

Science

03

Innovate

04

Source

05

Manufacture

06

Market

07

Sell

08

Insights

Social

Human

30,000+

1.3 bn+Ushs

local strategic partners
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investment in refurbishment
of our Kampala offices
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Progress
At BAT we are proud of the progress we are making on the
journey to transform our business.
We are committed to achieving our goal of £5 billion revenue
from our new categories by 2025. As we are to tracking and
sharing our progress.
We continue to focus on delivering strong returns for our
shareholders, ensuring a progressive environment for our
more than 50,000 global employees and addressing our
impact on society as a whole.
These ambitions inspire us to keep accelerating towards
building A Better Tomorrow ™.

BAT Group

*
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Our Group sustainability agenda
As our Group strategy evolves, our Sustainability Agenda is also evolving. We are moving ourselves from a
business where sustainability has always been important, to one where it is front and centre in all that we
do.
Our Sustainability Agenda is integral to our evolved Group strategy. Our Sustainability Agenda reflects our
commitment to reducing the health impact of our business and excellence across our other ESG priorities.
Our approach is driven by extensive stakeholder insights, and through this process, we engage with a
wide range of stakeholders to understand what matters most to them, complemented with ongoing
risk monitoring, research and benchmarking. This approach ensures we keep pace with emerging topics
and stakeholder expectations. Outlined here are the priority areas that form the core of BAT Group’s
Sustainability Agenda.

Reducing the HEALTH
impact of our business
Consumer
choice

Excellence in
ENVIRONMENTAL
management

World-class
science

Standards
and regulation

Delivering
a positive
SOCIAL impact

Robust
corporate
GOVERNANCE

Climate change

Human rights

Business ethics

Water and waste

Farmer livelihoods

Responsible marketing

Sustainable agriculture

Health and safety

Circular economy

People and culture

Regulation and
policy management

Created shared value for
Consumers

Society
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Employees

Shareholders
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Science
At BAT we are proud of our work in science and innovation which
is fundamental to our business. But don’t take our word for it.
Our unique plant-based technology has been used to develop
a COVID-19 and seasonal flu candidate vaccine. Both have
progressed into Phase 1 first-time in human trials, following
approval by the FDA of the Investigational New Drug application.
We have more than 1,500 Research & Development specialists,
including global leaders in the field of plant genomics and
bioinformatics, across our research facilities in the UK and USA.
This scientific progress inspires us to keep accelerating towards
building A Better Tomorrow ™.

BAT Group

*
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Our Ethos
Our purpose is to build ‘A Better TomorrowTM’ by reducing the health impact of our business through
offering a greater choice of viable and less risky* products for our consumers.
A key driver to deliver this will be our Ethos - an evolution of our Guiding Principles - which guides
behaviours across the entire BAT Group. It has been developed with significant input from our employees
and promotes a culture that is future fit by providing a foundation for sustainable growth.

We are
BOLD

We are
FAST

We are
EMPOWERED

Dream big - with
innovative ideas

Speed Matters. Set clear
direction and move fast

Set the context for our teams
and trust their expertise

Make tough decisions
quickly and proudly stand
accountable for them

Keep it simple. Focus on
outcomes

Challenge each other. Once
in agreement we commit
collectively

Resilient and fearless to
compete

Learn quickly and share
learnings

We are
DIVERSE

We are
RESPONSIBLE

Value different perspectives

Take action to reduce
the health impact of our
business

Build on each others’ ideas,
knowledge and experinces
Challenge ourselves to be
open-minded, recognising
unconscious bias

Collaborate and hold each
other accountable to deliver

Ensure the best quality
products for our consumers,
the best place to work for our
people, and the best results
for shareholders
Act with integrity, never
compromising our standards
and ethics

* Based on the weight of evidence and assuming a complete switch from cigarette smoking. These products are not risk free and are addictive.
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Diversity
At BAT we are proud to be building a modern organisation
for all of our 50,000+ employees globally. But don’t take
our word for it.
For the fourth year in a row, BAT has been named as a
Global Top Employer by the Top Employers Institute, as
well as a Top Employer in 34 individual countries.
And for the second consecutive year, we featured in the
Financial Times Diversity Leader rankings – a measure of an
employer’s diversity of gender, age, ethnicity, disability and
sexual orientation.
This recognition inspires us to keep accelerating towards
building A Better Tomorrow ™.

BAT Group

*
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Growth
Delivering A Better Tomorrow TM through
inspirational foresights to drive cross
category portfolio development and
sustainable partnerships.
Our unique view of consumer needs across
categories is increasingly driven by powerful
data and analytics. These insights ensure that
the development and responsible marketing of
our products is fit to continuously anticipate and
satisfy the needs of our consumer.
Portfolio transformation
Our portfolio transformation journey remains
an integral pillar of our strategy in Uganda. This
will enable us deliver A Better TomorrowTM for
consumers by focusing on fewer, stronger and
global brands that are underpinned by a deep
understanding of our consumers, while meeting
their ever-evolving preferences.
As part of our strategic plan for Uganda, we
successfully completed the migration of REX to
Dunhill in 2020. Dunhill is BAT Group’s premium
brand that offers a refined smoking experience
through superior innovation. The change was
well received in the market, thereby providing
an enabling environment to scale up the brand
in Uganda by leveraging on its global innovation
pipeline.
Driving growth through sustainable trade
partnerships
2020 was a unique year, especially due to the
challenges posed by COVID-19. The pandemic
saw the evolution of our ways of working, with a
view to maintaining business continuity whilst
safeguarding our people.
Through agile and innovative interventions, we
maintained high levels of customer service and
satisfaction by leveraging digital technologies
such as tele-sales, to ensure we had the necessary
flexibility to serve the market, despite movement
restrictions related to the COVID-19 pandemic.
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A purposeful
organisation
Our People priorities for A Better TomorrowTM
A non-stop Talent Agenda despite a tough 2020
It is likely that the way we work will be forever changed as a
result of COVID-19. 2020 was all about the pandemic’s impact
on the workforce and how our robust People & Culture
agenda was able to quickly adapt and innovate to support the
organisation’s response to the pandemic.
On a positive note, the challenges of 2020 brought out the
best in us, as we came together to live our Ethos – BOLD, FAST,
EMPOWERED, DIVERSE, RESPONSIBLE. Our leaders have been
at the center of a rapid and successful response to COVID-19
and played a central role in keeping our teams engaged,
productive and resilient.

Attracting Top Talent
Despite a challenging year, we continued to drive an energising,
strong and agile environment where people are empowered
to deliver. New joiners in 2020 experienced an innovative
onboarding experience, which included a virtual repository of
relevant business content alongside virtual one to one sessions
with the respective leaders.
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BAT’s Business and Leadership Capability Model which is aligned with
our Ethos, defines what we expect from our leaders and provides
a foundation for our approach to developing leaders. Despite a
challenging environment in 2020 in which our teams were working
partially remotely, we managed to deploy our 70/20/10 Leadership and
Development agenda on time and in full, 100% virtual.

Highlight – developing “Amazing Managers”

Leadership for change

Our 2-day “Amazing Managers” programme brings
to life practical tools to newly promoted leaders, to
help them better recruit, reward, retain and develop
talent. Due to COVID-19 restrictions, the programme
was split into 6 virtual modules, supported by a
comprehensive playlist of short learning videos and
materials hosted on ‘The Grid’.

Diversity and Inclusion
BAT Uganda is committed to driving an inclusive
culture that respects and embraces the diversity of
employees, clients and communities. We believe
that diversity is central to our culture and business
sustainability: creating a respectful and inclusive
environment where people can thrive and building
talented and diverse teams to drive business results.

*The Grid aims to expand and embed self-learning
and training opportunities for employees. It offers
high-quality online materials – Harvard content,
LinkedIn learning, Ted Talks etc - to develop skills
and capabilities. It allows you to create a learning
pathway which is linked to your development
plan and interests, accessing content anytime,
anywhere.

We are committed to being a diverse and inclusive
organisation and as such, understanding and
improving our gender balance is an important part
of this journey. Diverse teams that are representative
of the world we live in are key to building high
performing teams. This is not about setting quotas,
it is about ensuring that BAT reflects today’s talent
and markets. Therefore, improving our diversity
statistics across all levels of the organisation requires
understanding and focus from the leadership, the
Board and people managers across our business.
And it is not just about gender. We have a clear
360° Diversity Strategy to include and nurture
talent, challenge established views and promote
alternative ideas and new perspectives. This means
that we have an ambition to show leadership
in diversity at every level, as well as training all
our people to understand differences, and how
to manage, treat, and develop people from all
backgrounds. An open and honest dialogue and
a culture of trust are also very important elements
in our desire and need to create a truly inclusive
organisation.
TRIBES

GENDER

DISABILITIES

INCLUSIVE
LEADERSHIP
RESPECT
INCLUSION
EQUALITY

BACKGROUND

GENERATIONS

RELIGION
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Walking the talk

From November 2020, role titles for Human Resource leaders in
the BAT Group changed to reflect our commitment to Diversity &
Inclusion.
FROM

TO

Director of Talent & Culture

Director of Talent, Culture &
Inclusion

Group Head of Talent & OE

Group Head of Talent, OE &
Inclusion

Group Head of Talent
Development & Diversity

Group Head of Talent
Development & Inclusion

Group Head of HR (Function)

Group Head of HR & Inclusion
(Function)

Regional Head of HR

Regional Head of Talent, Culture
& Inclusion

Senior Vice President HR

Senior Vice President HR &
Inclusion

DRBU HRDs

HR & Inclusion Directors

Talent & OE Managers

Talent, OE & Inclusion Managers

Empowered organisation

As we drove an energised,
strong and agile culture and
reinforced our Ethos – we
introduced a digital, fun and
instant recognition tool. With
the simple click of a button on
Outlook, employees can send
Ethos-themed Thank You e-cards
to colleagues to show recognition
and appreciation.
Create a recognition card!

Building future capabilities

We are setting the pace in the market on deploying future capabilities
development tools. An example is the Marketing 2.0 programme
which brings to life our mantra ‘stronger, simpler, faster’ through six
macros and foundations for our employees in Marketing. In order to
step up and prepare our teams, we are deploying the Marketing 2.0
content through exciting Live sessions with senior leaders, alongside
a robust Grid playlist to consolidate learnings and concepts. This is
anchored on the objectives framework below.
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Our
sustainability
approach
Our Sustainability Agenda
is integral to our evolved
strategy and is underpinned
by a drive for excellence across
our ESG priorities. Effective
governance is critical to
ensuring that we manage
our sustainability impacts,
and our wider business,
responsibly. Our governance
structure starts at the Board of
Directors, who have oversight
of strategic issues, while our
Board Audit Committee has
responsibility for monitoring
our performance. We also
have clear policies, principles
and standards that detail the
way we do business and how
we behave and conduct our
business.

Our socio-economic
contribution

We have consistently invested
in our business and sought to
increase our contribution to the
socio-economic development

of the country since BAT started
operating in Uganda over 90
years ago, and the Company’s
listing on the Uganda Securities
Exchange in 2000.
We generate direct and indirect
employment and business
opportunities for more than
30,000 Ugandans in tobacco
product distribution, urban and
rural retailing, wholesale trade,
transport, logistics and domestic
procurement amongst others.
Our sustained investments and
tax remittances have contributed

03 | Business Review

to the country’s economic
growth. In the past five years, we
have paid over Ushs 513 billion to
the Exchequer in form of various
taxes, making us one of the
largest tax payers in Uganda.

Our approach to regulation
BAT Uganda supports regulation
that is based on robust evidence
through balanced and thorough
research as well as fair, credible
and transparent consultative
processes, in which the potential
unintended consequences
have been fully explored and
addressed. We also believe
that a stable regulatory and
fiscal environment is crucial
for business as well as for
government and the consumer.
It facilitates responsible
and sustainable business
while supporting economic
development – enabling the
growth of over 30,000 adults
involved in our business
and mitigating unintended
consequences such as
stimulating illicit trade.

In 2020, we continued engaging
with various government
departments in pursuing a
balanced and predictable
regulatory and fiscal environment
for our business.

With the gazettement of the
Tobacco Control Regulations
(TCR) by the Ministry of Health in
September 2019, the labelling and
packaging requirements were
due to take effect in February
2020, thereby giving the tobacco
industry less than six months
within which to comply.
We reiterate that BAT Uganda
supports a consultative and
inclusive regulatory process.
Given the untenable
implementation of the TCR , BAT
Uganda filed an application for
judicial review of the regulations,
seeking an order to restrain the
Minister for Health and Attorney
General from implementing
regulations relating to labelling
and packaging requirements,
as well as a declaration that the
enactment of the regulations
was tainted by irrationality and
procedural unfairness. The
application was premised on the
lack of a balanced, credible and
transparent consultation process
with the tobacco industry and
failure to take into account its
relevant considerations and views.

provisions of the regulations
to 1 April 2020, the said order
was subsequently extended to
1 February 2021. Through the
alternative dispute resolution
discussions sanctioned by the
court, the Ministry of Health was
accommodative of a concurrent
exhaustion of our tobacco
products with text health warning
and introduction of tobacco
products with graphic health
warnings.
Accordingly, BAT Uganda
embarked on introducing in
the Ugandan market at the
earliest time possible, tobacco
products which are compliant
with the labelling and packaging
requirements of the TCR. By end
of 2020, BAT Uganda was fully
compliant with the provisions of
the regulations.
In 2021, we will continue
to engage the different
enforcement agencies for
fair implementation and
enforcement of the regulations
across the tobacco industry.

In February 2020, the High Court
issued an order deferring the
commencement of the disputed
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SPECIAL FEATURE:

Navigating the COVID-19 pandemic
As a key contributor to the Ugandan economy,
we are playing an active role in adapting to the
new ways of working in order to keep Uganda
moving and deliver A Better Tomorrow TM for our
stakeholders. At the onset of the pandemic, we
put in place various measures to facilitate business
continuity and mitigate the spread of COVID-19 and
safeguard the safety of our people and their families.
To mitigate business disruption in the immediate
term, we quickly kicked-off our Pandemic Business
Continuity Plan, which addresses three clear
priorities:
a) Employee welfare and keeping our people as
safe as possible;
Guided by our Ethos; we are BOLD, FAST,
EMPOWERED, DIVERSE and RESPONSIBLE, we
endevour to always take deliberate, responsible
and careful actions when it comes to our people,
and this is true even during these unprecedented
and challenging times. In addition to keeping
our people safe, we implemented several
initiatives that cut across financial management
and employee engagement. These have in
turn supported business continuity and so
far, enabled us to retain jobs and provide full
remuneration. These measures include:
Workforce planning: through continuous
monitoring and rationalisation of employment
costs, such as temporary halting of nonessential hiring and expenditure.
Employee wellness: We launched virtual
forums with qualified professionals and
personal 1:1 follow-up sessions to ensure that
our people are well and safe, as well as their
families.
Flexibility and agility: We enabled employees
to be agile and embrace the new normal by
providing them with the resources and full
support (data bundles, work-from-home
schedules and tips, revised ways of working,
etc). This helps them adapt their daily routines
to deliver at work as well as support their
families. Additionally, we quickly adapted
our talent processes to include aspects such
as virtual onboarding and an updated fully
digital Learning portfolio.
Reinforcing trust and a sense of belonging:
We took measures to keep staff well informed
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and engaged, ensuring that decisions
affecting them were communicated in a
timely manner. We sent business updates
on a regular basis, while also checking-in
on each other in person (1:1 phone calls by
management). We also conducted virtual
townhalls and social forums for employees to
engage with their peers and Leadership Team
at a more personal level – asking questions
and giving input towards decision-making.
This enabled us to reinforce trust, thereby
keeping employees involved, engaged and
motivated to continue delivering as one.
Health and safety initiatives:
Provision of protective equipment such as
masks and gloves where necessary.
Temperature thermo-screening upon entry
and exit.
Provision of hand sanitisers to all staff and
placement at our offices.
Facilitating social distancing including
working from home for non-essential staff
and using technology as much as possible to
stay connected and keep the Business going.
b) Enabling business continuity in order to
preserve jobs
We ensured that finished goods were in line
with our maximum stock-keeping policies in
readiness of any prolonged market disruption.
Where possible, we maintained high levels
of customer service and satisfaction by
leveraging tele-sales platforms to flexibly serve
the market despite the movement restrictions
related to COVID-19.
In addition, the BAT Group is also undertaking
research into the development of a COVID-19
vaccine at the BAT Group’s US biotech subsidiary.
The vaccine is being developed using new, fastgrowing tobacco plant technology as tobacco
plants have the potential for faster and safer vaccine
development compared to conventional methods.
At BAT, we believe that if we work together to stay
safe, we then we can get through this together and
come out stronger on the other side.
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We are building A Better
Tomorrow for shareholders
by delivering sustainable and
superior returns.
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Board of Directors

HON. DR. ELLY KARUHANGA
Non-Executive Chairman

KIRUNDA MAGOOLA
Managing Director

CANDY WEKESA-OKOBOI
Non-Executive Director

Nationality: Ugandan

Nationality: Ugandan

Nationality: Ugandan

Position: Non-Executive Chairman
since 2013

Position: Managing Director since
2020

Position: Non-Executive Director
since 2020

Hon Dr. Elly Karuhanga is the current
Chairman of the Private Sector Fund
Uganda (PSFU) and Chairman of the
Governing Council of the Uganda
Chamber of Mines and Petroleum.
He is a founding Partner of Kampala
Associated Advocates and the
founder President and immediate
past Chairman of the Governing
Council of the Centre for Arbitration
and Alternative Dispute Resolution.
He was formerly a Member of
Parliament for Nyabushozi County
and Chairman of the Presidential
& Foreign Affairs Committee of
the Parliament of the Republic
of Uganda and Chairman of the
National Social Security Fund. He
is currently the Chairman of Minet
Insurance (formerly) AON and the
former President of Tullow Oil in
Uganda.

Kirunda brings extensive experience
of 18 years in regulatory compliance
and policy development from various
fields, including the energy and
sugar sectors. He joined BAT Uganda
in October 2018 to drive the Legal
and External Affairs agenda for the
Uganda market. Prior to his current
role, he was the Company’s Corporate
and Regulatory Affairs Manager.

Candy has over 20 years’ experience
in legal practice, financial markets
and consulting. She is currently
the Head of Legal at Stanbic Bank
Uganda Limited. Prior to this, she
was previously the Deputy General
Counsel of the UAP Old Mutual
Group and Head of the Legal and
Compliance departments at the
Uganda Securities Exchange and
the Capital Markets Authority. She
also served as Senior Legal Advisor
(Business Licensing Reform Project)
at the Uganda Investment Climate
Program (under the support of the
International Finance Corporation
and World Bank Group). She has
also previously been a member of
the Africa Peer Review Mechanism
Country Review Missions for the
Republic of Zambia and the United
Republic of Tanzania.

He holds a Master of Science degree
in Accounting and Finance from
Makerere University Business School
and a Bachelor of Commerce degree
from Bhopal University, India. He is
also the Cluster Manager for the BAT
Great Lakes region comprising of
Uganda and Rwanda.

He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Law
(LLB) and a Post Graduate Diploma
in Legal Practice. He is the Honorary
Consul General of the Republic of
Seychelles to Uganda and also serves
on the Boards of DFCU Limited and
Marasa Holdings.
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Candy holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Law from Makerere University,
a Post-Graduate Diploma in Legal
Practice from the Law Development
Centre and a Master of Business
Administration from the University of
Edinburgh Management School.
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FRED TUMWESIGYE
Non-Executive Director

PHILEMON KIPKEMOI
Non-Executive Director

NICHOLAS ECIMU
Company Secretary

Nationality: Ugandan

Nationality: Kenyan

Nationality: Ugandan

Position: Non-Executive Director
since 2001

Position: Non-Executive Director
since 2017

Position: Company Secretary since
2013

Prior to his appointment to the
Board, Fred had a long and
distinguished career in operations
within BAT, retiring as Head of
Processing in 2000. Upon retiring
from the Company, he joined Babcon
Uganda Limited, a privately-owned
local construction company. He
previously worked for the then East
African Railways Corporation and
served as a Board Member of the Civil
Aviation Authority of Uganda.

Philemon is currently serving as the
Head of Finance for BAT’s East Africa
Markets which consists of 17 markets
including Uganda, Kenya, Rwanda,
Tanzania, Somalia, Somaliland,
South Sudan, La Reunion, Mauritius,
Madagascar, Djibouti, Comoros
Islands, Eritrea, Ethiopia, Mayotte,
Seychelles and Burundi. He has a
wealth of experience spanning over
16 years in Financial Management
and has served in several senior
positions within the BAT Group,
including, Finance Controller BAT
Uganda and Head of Finance for BAT
Horn of Africa & Indian Ocean Islands
amongst others.

Nicholas is a Partner at S & L
Advocates (formerly Sebalu and
Lule Advocates) and heads the
firm’s Energy, Oil & Gas, Mining
and Projects practice. He provides
company secretarial services to
companies including BAT Uganda
and Orient Bank Limited. He is a
member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and AdministratorsLondon. He has also trained with
renowned global institutions
including the Institute of Public
Private Partnerships-Washington
DC, International Development Law
Organisation- Rome and the Royal
Institute of Public AdministrationLondon. He is internationally
recognised as a leading projects
lawyers by both Chambers Global –
the World’s leading lawyers - and the
International Financial Law Review
(IFLR1000).

He is a member of the Uganda
Institution of Professional Engineers
and the Institute of Corporate
Governance of Uganda.

He is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants
(FCCA) and holds an MBA from
Oxford Brookes University – UK.

He holds a Post Graduate Diploma in
Legal Practice and a Bachelor of Laws
Degree from Makerere University.
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Leadership
Team

Kirunda Magoola
Managing Director

Maria Mugerwa
Head of Finance

Mark Sekyana
Head of Trade

Justina Ntabgoba
Corporate & Regulatory
Affairs Manager

Kirunda brings extensive
experience of over 18 years
in regulatory compliance
and policy development
from various fields,
including the energy and
sugar sectors. He joined
BAT in October 2018
to drive the Legal and
External Affairs agenda for
the Uganda market. Prior
to his current role, he was
the Company’s Corporate
and Regulatory Affairs
Manager. He is also the
Cluster Manager, BAT Great
Lakes region comprising of
Uganda and Rwanda.

Maria joined BAT Uganda
as Head of Finance in
October 2020 and is
responsible for financial
management and
internal controls. She
was a Senior Manager at
PricewaterhouseCoopers
prior to joining BAT. She
brings over 11 years of
experience in financial
and audit assurance in the
public and private sectors,
in Uganda and the United
Kingdom.

Mark has been with the
BAT Group for five years,
having joined in 2015 as
Area Manager in charge
of the market in Western
Uganda. He served as
a Marketing Services
Executive in Kenya before
his appointment as the
Head of Trade in 2019. In his
current role, he oversees
the overall marketing
strategy for BAT Uganda.
He has over 6 years of sales
and marketing experience
from various industries
including Petroleum and
Information Technology.

Justina joined BAT in April
2021 to lead BAT Uganda’s
External Affairs agenda.

He holds a Master
of Science degree in
Accounting and Finance
from Makerere University
Business School and a
Bachelor of Commerce
degree from Bhopal
University, India.

Maria holds a Bachelor of
Arts in Economics degree
from Makerere University
in Kampala. She is a
fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified
Accountants UK (FCCA)
and a member of the
Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Uganda
(ICPAU).
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Mark holds a Bachelor of
International Business
from Makerere University
Business School in
Kampala, and is currently
undertaking a post
graduate diploma in
Marketing from the
Chartered Institute of
Marketing in his pursuit
to become a Chartered
Marketer.

Prior to her current
appointment, she worked
with Gemini Consult in
Kampala as the Strategy
Lead. She has over 15
years of experience in
Corporate Affairs, and
brings cross-sectoral
experience having worked
in different organisational
environments and
cultures, largely in the
telecommunications
sector where she spent
approximately eight years
with MTN Uganda.
Justina is currently
pursuing a Master of
Business Administration
from University of East
London and holds a
Bachelor’s Degree
in Journalism and
Communications from
Howard University.
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Statement of Corporate Governance
Corporate governance approach
British American Tobacco Uganda Limited (the
“Company”) is committed to implementing
initiatives that foster good corporate governance.
The Company prides itself in the establishment of
an appropriate legal, institutional and policy-driven
environment that allows it to thrive and remain
a going concern, and which advances long-term
shareholder value and people development while
strictly observing its responsibilities to the society
that it operates in. The Board of Directors (the
“Board”) adopts robust corporate governance
practices and strong oversight processes, in order
to create a system of governance that ensures
conformity and performance, driven by the vision
and mission of the Company.
This Statement takes cognizance of and explains
how the Company complies with the Companies
Act, 2012, the Capital Markets (Corporate
Governance) Guidelines 2003 and its continuing
listing obligations under the Uganda Securities
Exchange Listing Rules 2003. The above laws and
regulations are intended to ensure that public listed
companies adhere to sound corporate practices and
good governance.
The Role of the Board
The Board is accountable and responsible for the
efficient and effective governance of the Company
in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles
of Association. The following are some of the key
roles of the Board:
a) Approval and validation of Company strategy as
well as risk management,
b) Approval of Company policies,
c) Ensuring internal and regulatory compliance,
d) Ensuring good corporate governance and
monitoring the ethical standards of the
Company,
e) Agreeing on Board succession plans,
f) Approving major corporate activities and
company budget,
g) Reviewing periodic financial reports and
approval of the Annual Report,
h) Declaring interim and recommending the final
dividend to the shareholders, and
i) Determining the Terms of Reference of all
Board committees and reviewing of reports and
minutes of the Committees.
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Composition of the Board
The Board is currently constituted of five (5)
Directors, four of whom are Non-Executive Directors.
Out of the four Non-Executive Directors, two (2) are
independent Non-Executive Directors. Directors
are elected by the shareholders in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association. Casual
vacancies occurring in the Board are filled by the
Board in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, which include having to offer up for
election any such Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy in the very next Annual General Meeting of
the shareholders.
The Board is accountable and responsible for the
efficient and effective governance of the Company
in accordance to the Memorandum and Articles
of Association. The composition of the Board,
including Directors’ profiles and competencies, can
be seen on pages 36 and 37 of this Annual Report.
The composition of the Board takes cognizance
of the knowledge, skills and experience of the
Directors for effective contribution to the Board
and the business of the Company. All the Directors
are highly regarded, qualified and experienced
individuals, with proven business acumen and hold
positions of responsibility and other Directorships
in credible entities. The diversity of skills and
experience on the Board ensures that the Board
functions effectively.
The Board provides leadership based on integrity,
transparency, accountability and responsibility.
The Directors have a duty to govern, direct, control,
lead, guide and monitor the performance of the
Company. Importantly, the Board regularly reviews
the Company’s internal controls and governance
systems to ensure that the control environment is
robust for business growth and sustainability.
It is the Board’s duty to prepare and present a
balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’s position while reporting to the
shareholders and other stakeholders.
Division of responsibilities
The Company has a unitary Board structure and the
roles of the Chairman and Managing Director are
separate. The Chairman is an independent NonExecutive Director and is responsible for leadership
of the Board and for ensuring its effectiveness
in all aspects of its roles. The Chairman is also
accountable to the Board for leading the direction
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Statement of Corporate Governance (continued)
of the Company’s corporate and financial strategy, and for overall supervision of the policies governing the
conduct of the Business.
The Managing Director has overall responsibility for the performance of the Business and provides
leadership to facilitate successful planning and execution of the objectives agreed by the Board. The
Managing Director reports to the Board on a quarterly basis and more frequently where the needs of the
Business so require.
Delegation of authority
Although day-to-day managerial authority is delegated to the management team led by the Managing
Director, the Board monitors and evaluates the implementation of strategies, policies, management
performance and business plans at its meeting and through committees it has established to assist it
in discharging its responsibilities. The Board regularly reviews the delegation of authority framework
to ensure that it is appropriate and consistent with best practice and meets the requirements of the
Company.
The following are the three committees established by the Board:
a) Audit Committee
b) Remuneration Committee
c) Nominations Committee
These committees assist the Board in the performance of its duties. The committees meet regularly and,
in their meetings, interact with members of management regarding the operations of the Company.
The committees are established based on specific terms of reference which set out their responsibilities,
composition, scope of authority and procedures to be followed.
Meetings of the Board
The Board meets at least once every quarter to formulate, review, evaluate and make decisions on key
strategic and operational activities of the Business among other matters. The Terms of Reference can be
viewed at the registered office of the Company from Monday to Friday, between 8.00 am and 5.00 pm.
The composition of the Board as at 31 December 2020 and as the date of this Annual Report is provided on
pages 9, 36 to 37.
Name

13 February 2020

21 July 2020

28 July 2020

19 November 2020

Hon. Dr. Elly Karuhanga
Candy Wekesa Okoboi

-

Fred Tumwesigye
Philemon Kipkemoi
Mathu Kiunjuri
Kirunda Magoola

-

-

-

Changes to the Board
1. Candy Wekesa Okoboi was appointed to the Board with effect from 21 April 2020.
2. Mathu Kiunjuri resigned from the Board with effect from 31 July 2020.
3. Kirunda Magoola was appointed to the Board with effect from 1 August 2020.
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Board Committees
Audit Committee:
The Company maintains a sound system of internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ investment and
Company assets. The Audit Committee regularly reviews the Company’s processes and procedures to
ensure the effectiveness of these controls. The Audit Committee monitors the integrity of the Company’s
financial reporting.
The Audit Committee also helps to identify and assess, together with the Management, any risks that
might prevent the Company’s objectives from being achieved. The Committee also reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s conduct of its business, in conformity with the
Company’s core values.
The Audit Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive Director and has a membership of two other NonExecutive Directors. Internal and external auditors as well as members from the Management team of the
Company are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee.
Current Members
Fred Tumwesigye (Chairman)
Candy Okoboi
Philemon Kipkemoi
S & L Advocates (Secretary)
The Audit Committee meets at least three times a year and uses internal and external audit results to
support the monitoring of risks and controls throughout the year. The attendance of the Audit Committee
meetings in 2020 was as follows:
Name

12 February 2020

27 July 2020

18 November 2020

Fred Tumwesigye
Philemon Kipkemoi
Candy Wekesa Okoboi

-

Change to the Committee:
1. Candy Wekesa was appointed to the Committee on 29 June 2020.
Remuneration Committee:
The Committee’s mandate is to assist the Board in setting and overseeing the implementation of the
Company’s remuneration philosophy and strategy. The Remuneration Committee determines the
remuneration policy for employees and Non-Executive Directors and ensures that compensation is
performance-driven and appropriately benchmarked against other companies in Uganda.
The Remuneration Committee is further responsible for setting executive remuneration covering salary
and benefits, performance-based and variable rewards, pensions and terms of service, setting of targets
applicable for the Company’s performance-based reward schemes and monitoring and advising the Board
on major changes to the policy on employee benefit structures for the Company.
The Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive Director and has a membership of two other Non-Executive
Directors. Members from the Management team of the Company may, however, be invited to Committee
meetings.
Current Members
Candy Wekesa Okoboi (Chairperson)
Fred Tumwesigye
Philemon Kipkemoi
Diana Johnson (Secretary)
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Board Committees (continued)
The Committee meets at least once a year to
discharge its duties and responsibilities. However,
ad hoc meetings may be called as and when
requested by Management or assigned by the
Board. The attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meetings in 2020 was as follows:
Name

11 February 2020

Philemon Kipkemoi
Mathu Kiunjuri
Candy Wekesa Okoboi

-

Change to the Committee:
1. Candy Wekesa was appointed to the Committee
on 29 June 2020.

Name

11 February 2020

Hon. Dr. Elly Karuhanga
Fred Tumwesigye
Philemon Kipkemoi

The Company Secretary
The Companies Act provides for the appointment of
a Company Secretary whose duties are to facilitate
the Board processes and guide the Board on the
proper discharge of their duties and responsibilities.
The Directors have unrestricted access to the
services of the Company Secretary.

Nominations Committee:
The Nominations Committee’s mandate is to
review and consider the structure and balance of
the Board and make recommendations regarding
appointments, retirements and terms of office of
Directors.

Strategy
The Board is responsible for the development and
guidance of the Company’s business strategy.
The Board, with the assistance of Management,
ensures that the strategic objectives and initiatives
of the Company are aligned with its vision and core
values, and regularly monitors and reviews the
performance of the Company against the strategic
objectives developed.

The Committee’s responsibilities include, among
others, identifying and recommending to the
Board, candidates for the Board and competencies
of new Directors, reviewing induction procedures,
reviewing succession plans for the Board and
reviewing measures for keeping Directors up to
date with the Company’s activities and external
developments.

Technology
The Board has adopted virtual platforms in the
conduct of its business and execution of its roles
through use of online platforms such as Convene
and Microsoft Teams, to circulate reports to the
Board and conduct virtual meetings. The platforms
have high levels of security and privacy features
which ensure information security.

The Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive
Director and has a membership of two other
Non-Executive Directors. Members from the
Management team of the Company, may, however,
be invited to Committee meetings.

The decision to use an online platform for
circulation of reports to the Board is aligned with
the Company’s strategy to champion a paperless
culture within the Business. This has significantly
reduced the consumption of paper, which is very
key to the Company’s environmental conservation
agenda. Similarly, the use of online platforms to
conduct Board meetings is an example of the
Company’s agility.

Current Members
Hon. Dr. Elly Karuhanga (Chairman)
Fred Tumwesigye
Philemon Kipkemoi
S & L Advocates (Secretary)
The Committee is mandated to meet at least once a
year to discharge its duties and responsibilities with
informal and ad hoc meetings being convened as
and when required.
The attendance of the Nominations Committee
meetings in 2020 was as follows:
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Access to information and resources
Directors have unrestricted access to Management
and Company information, and the resources
necessary to carry out their role. Directors are
provided with comprehensive information to
facilitate their decision making within and outside
of Board meetings.
Standards of Business Conduct
The Company strives to uphold the highest
level of integrity and ensure that its business
and dealings are conducted ethically. In that
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Board Committees (continued)
regard, the Company has adopted the BAT Group
Standards of Business Conduct, which ensure the
achievement of the Company’s business objectives
in a responsible manner and in tandem with high
standards of honesty, transparency and integrity.
On an annual basis, the Company’s employees and
Directors are required to declare any conflicts of
interest and their adherence to the Standards of
Business Conduct.

Every shareholder has a right to participate in and
vote at the general shareholders meeting, including
in the election of Directors. Shareholders are
encouraged to ask questions or seek clarification
on the Company’s performance as reflected in the
Annual Reports and accounts, or in any matter that
may be relevant to the Company’s performance or
promotion of shareholders’ interests, and receive
explanations from the Directors and Management.

Enforcement and observance of the Standards
of Business Conduct is continually monitored.
Compliance ensures that the actions of employees
and Directors are in line with the expected ethical
standards and the laws of Uganda. The Standards of
Business Conduct enhance the ability of employees
and Directors to make appropriate judgment and
decisions in the course of their work.

The Company engaged Deloitte (Uganda) Limited
to handle day-to-day shareholder register issues.
Dividends, when declared, are paid on time and in
accordance with applicable regulatory timelines.
The Company declared a final dividend of Ushs
406 per share, which was proposed by the Board
on 11 February 2021 and will be presented to the
Annual General Meeting for approval by eligible
shareholders.

Management of conflict of Interest
In accordance with the Standards of Business
Conduct, Directors and employees must
immediately disclose any actual or potential
conflicts of interest, which are duly recorded and
appropriate action taken. Actual and potential
conflicts of interest are disclosed as and when
employees become aware of them, and each year
during the year-end formal sign-off on compliance
with the Standards of Business Conduct. All
employees and Directors attest to the Standards of
Business Conduct.

Stakeholder engagement
The Board is focused on ensuring that the
Company maintains regular and appropriate
engagement with its key stakeholders who include
the Government of Uganda, regulatory agencies
such as the Capital Markets Authority, the Uganda
Securities Exchange, the Uganda Revenue Authority
and the general public. The Board recognises that
the goodwill of stakeholders is critically important to
the Company’s sustainability and long-term future.

Employees
Our employment principles provide a framework for
best workplace practices and employee relations.
Recruitment of employees is done meritoriously
based on equality and equal opportunities.
Employees have various fora like team briefs,
Your Voice survey and discussion forums through
which they express their concerns and make direct
contribution to the management of the Business.
Engagement with shareholders
The Company ensures that its shareholders and
the investing public are availed with full and timely
information about its business and performance.
This is achieved through publication of half-year
and full-year Financial Statements, Annual Reports,
attending to information requests and holding
shareholder meetings.
The Company engages closely with the holding
company which provides technical support to the
Management on an ongoing basis.
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Compliance
The Company complies with applicable legislation,
regulations, standards and policies and continues to
monitor such compliance.
Share dealing
The Company has a Code of Share Dealing and an
Insider Trading Policy whose purpose is to ensure
that the Company’s employees, contractors or
Directors do not use confidential price sensitive
information to the detriment of the market. The
code and policy prescribe restricted insiders from
dealing in the Company’s shares during closed
periods, being the period from the end of the
financial year to publication of annual results and in
the case of half year results, from the end of the half
year period to publication of the half year results.
Compliance with the code and policy is monitored
regularly. Notification is given to the restricted
insiders by the Company Secretary providing the
commencement and end of closed periods.
Going concern
The Directors have sufficient reason to believe that
the Company has adequate resources to continue
operating as a going concern.
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Governance policies
Statement on Insider Dealing
As a listed company, BAT Uganda is obliged
to require that the Directors and certain other
employees with inside information do not abuse or
place themselves under suspicion of abusing insider
information that they may have or be thought to
have. This is especially so in periods leading up to
an announcement of financial results. To this end,
the Company has a Code of Share Dealing policy
document, which sets out the requirements for BAT
insiders, in dealing in shares of the Company.

Information Technology Policy
BAT invests heavily in information technology
systems, to support the delivery of the Company’s
commercial goals. BAT’s information technology (IT)
systems are covered under an IT policy which aims
to protect the Company’s investment in information
technology infrastructure (including IT equipment,
mobile facilities, data/ telecommunications
networks and software) and maintain the highest
standards of cyber security, while protecting the
Company’s confidential and sensitive information.

The Company communicates ‘open’ and ‘closed’
periods for trading in its shares to its employees
and the Directors twice annually. To the best of the
Company’s knowledge, there was no insider dealing
in the 2020 financial year.

The policy aims to facilitate ease of use of IT systems
by staff, business partners and other stakeholders
while mandating the responsible use of IT systems.
In delivering on its objectives, BAT leverages
on IT expertise within the BAT Group, taking
learnings from economies of scale in purchase of IT
equipment and services.

Whistleblowing Policy
BAT’s Standards of Business Conduct (‘SoBC’) is a
statement of the Company’s values in its day-to-day
activities. This policy covers BAT’s commitments
on issues such as bribery, corruption and human
rights, in addition to setting out the Company’s
whistleblowing procedures.
The Whistleblowing Policy provides the platform
for employees to raise concerns for any suspected
wrongdoing, and the policy details how such
concerns will be addressed. The Board ensures that
risks arising from any ethical issues are identified
and managed in the risk management process.
Principles of Engagement
We are committed to corporate transparency
and recognise that as a responsible company, all
engagement activities we undertake must be
guided by internal standards. All employees are
required to act in accordance with the Principles for
Engagement. BAT Uganda does engage with third
parties on policy issues but will never ask a third
party to conduct itself in any way that contravenes
these ‘Principles for Engagement’.

Procurement Policy
BAT maintains a procurement policy that governs
the procurement of goods and services within the
Company. This policy and the related procedures
are necessary to ensure that business procurement
can generate value by satisfying the needs of the
Business with respect to service and cost associated
with acquisition of goods and services, except for
tobacco, salaries and strategic machinery.
The policy also ensures that the most appropriate
and effective controls are applied in the purchase
of goods and services for the Company’s needs.
The Company periodically reviews this policy as
may be necessitated by market conditions, legal
requirements or other factors.

Supplier Code of Conduct
Our Supplier Code of Conduct complements our
Group Standards of Business Conduct by defining
the minimum standards we expect our suppliers to
adhere to in order to supply goods or services to BAT
Uganda and any BAT Group company. This builds
upon our long-standing commitment to operate
to the highest standards of corporate conduct, for
both our own business operations and our wider
supply chain.
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Directors’ Reports

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
The Directors submit their report together with the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which disclose the state of affairs of British American Tobacco Uganda Limited (the “Company”).
Incorporation
The Company was incorporated in 1984 under the Companies Act of Uganda.
Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company are importation and distribution of cigarettes.
Results and dividend
The net profit for the year of Ushs 19,960 million (2019: Ushs 15,682 million) has been added to retained earnings. The
Directors recommend the payment of a dividend of Ushs 406 per share, amounting to Ushs 19,926 million (2019: Ushs
320 per share, amounting to Ushs 15,682 million).
Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page 5.
Auditor
The auditor, KPMG, being eligible for reappointment, has indicated willingness to continue in office in accordance with
section 167(2) of the Companies Act of Uganda.
Approval of the Financial Statements
The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on
11 February 2021.
By order of the Board

S & L Advocates
(formerly Sebalu & Lule Advocates)

Company Secretary
11 February 2021
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
The Company’s Directors are responsible for the preparation of Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
British American Tobacco Uganda Limited comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the Financial Statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act of Uganda.
The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for
maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk management.
The Directors have assessed the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and have no reason to believe the
Company will not be a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.
Approval of the Financial Statements
The Financial Statements of British American Tobacco Uganda Limited as indicated in the first paragraph, were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 11 February 2021.

			
Director						Director
11 February 2021
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Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of British American Tobacco Uganda Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the Financial Statements of British American Tobacco Uganda Limited (“the Company”) set out
on pages 56 to 96, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the statements
of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial
Statements, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of British
American Tobacco Uganda Limited as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the Companies Act of
Uganda.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial
Statements in Uganda, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Provisions and contingent liabilities in respect of litigations
The disclosures associated with provisions and contingent liabilities are set out in the Financial Statements in the
following notes;
Note 3 (k): Summary of significant accounting policies (Provisions)
Note 4: Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Note 22: Provisions for other liabilities
Note 23: Contingent liabilities
The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is subject to claims which could
have a significant impact on the operating
results if the potential exposures were to
materialise.

Our procedures in this area included, among others:

The Directors apply significant judgement when
considering whether, and how to account for
the potential exposure of each litigation. These
assumptions include;
the likelihood and/or timing of cash outflows.
the interpretation of pending or preliminary
rulings in assessing whether provisions arise.
estimation of the amount of potential
obligation.
We have assessed this as a Key Audit Matter
because of the number and magnitude of
potential litigations that the Company is
exposed to, and the complexity and judgement
necessary to determine whether and how much
to provide for the potential exposure for each
litigation or make disclosures in the Financial
Statements.
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assessing the processes and controls over litigations instituted by the
Directors.
inspecting documents relating to the nature of ongoing claims and
evaluating the latest status through discussion with internal legal
counsel and the finance team to establish the financial implications of
each claim.
assessing the reasonableness of management assumptions regarding
the likelihood and potential cash outflows in relation to the outstanding
legal cases at 31 December 2020 by evaluating the external legal
counsel’s assessment of the likely outcome through challenging
the basis used for the provisions recorded or disclosures made by
Management.
obtaining formal confirmations from the Company’s external legal
counsel for significant litigation matters to ensure suitability of the
accounting treatment adopted by management.
assessing relevant historical and recent judgments passed by the court
authorities alongside legal opinions from external lawyers to challenge
the assumptions made by the Directors in determining whether to
provide for losses or determining whether to provide for losses or
disclose the potential contingent liabilities.
evaluating the adequacy of the Financial Statement disclosures,
including disclosures of key assumptions and judgments.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
To the Members of British American Tobacco Uganda Limited (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)
Estimation of tax liabilities
The disclosures associated with taxation exposures are set out in the Financial Statements in the following notes;
Note 3(o): Summary of significant accounting policies (Income tax)
Note 4: Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Note 12: Income tax expense
Note 16: Deferred income tax
Note 19: Trade and other receivables
Note 23: Contingent liabilities
The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is subject to various taxes
enshrined within the Income Tax Act and other
rules issued by Uganda Revenue Authority
(URA). The Directors make certain judgements
when applying those tax laws to arrive at the tax
treatment of related goods and services and the
potential impact on the Financial Statements.

Our procedures in this area included, among others:

The Company is currently involved in certain tax
disputes with URA.
The key consideration for the audit was whether
the basis applied by the Company in arriving
at the various tax charges is consistent with
the Income Tax Act and the potential financial
impact of tax exposure arising from the
ongoing tax disputes with URA is appropriately
recognised and disclosed.

performing inquiries with management and inspecting the
correspondences with URA on these matters and the provisions of the
Income Tax Act to understand the basis of management’s conclusions
regarding the matters.
evaluating with the help of our tax specialists the treatment of various
tax heads in line with the provisions of the Income Tax Act to assess the
appropriateness of the approach adopted by management.
obtaining and evaluating management representations on the various
tax heads including inspecting correspondence with their tax lawyers in
respect of the tax matters.
evaluating the adequacy of the Financial Statement disclosures,
including disclosures of key assumptions and judgments.

We have assessed this as a Key Audit Matter
because of the significant judgment applied
by management in determining the outcome
of the disputes, the potential liability and
recoverability of any tax deposits.

Other information
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Company Information, Report of the Directors and Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities but does not include the
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and
the other information to be included in the Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date.
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we have obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
To the Members of British American Tobacco Uganda Limited (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the Companies Act of Uganda, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
The Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
ON THE UGANDA SECURITIES EXCHANGE 2000 - 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
To the Members of British American Tobacco Uganda Limited (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies Act of Uganda, we report to you, based on our audit, that:
i.

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our examination of
those books; and
iii. The statements of financial position and comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is CPA Asad Lukwago P0365.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
3rd Floor, Rwenzori Courts
Plot 2 & 4A, Nakasero Road
P.O. Box 3509
Kampala, Uganda
11 February 2021
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Net revenue

6(a)

79,247,686

75,435,523

Cost of sales

7

(29,622,786)

(28,482,840)

49,624,900

46,952,683

2,363,952

2,351,173

(4,255,335)

(6,399,282)

(17,875,397)

(20,361,367)

(700,588)

(103,289)

(8,203)

(898)

29,149,329

22,439,020

62,668

23,453

29,211,997

22,462,473

(9,251,823)

(6,780,577)

19,960,174

15,681,896

-

1,433,069

-

1,433,069

19,960,174

17,114,965

407

320

Gross profit
Other income

8

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Impairment of trade receivables

19(b)

Operating profit
Net finance income

9

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

12

Profit after tax
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains on revaluation of property, plant and equipment – net of tax

15

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Basic and diluted earnings per share

13

The notes on pages 60 to 96 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Equity attributable to owners
Share capital

14

61,350

61,350

Revaluation reserve

15

13,346,877

13,610,857

14,841,014

14,567,040

19,926,480

15,681,896

48,175,721

43,921,143

18(b)

620,292

1,007,359

16

5,918,992

5,425,022

6,539,284

6,432,381

54,715,005

50,353,524

31,686,081

32,199,493

859,175

1,503,967

32,545,256

33,703,460

142,881

469,065

19(a)

22,474,636

21,052,823

20

14,583,813

12,755,541

37,201,330

34,277,429

Retained earnings
Proposed dividends

13 (b)

Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Lease liability
Deferred tax liability
Total non-current liabilities
Total equity and non-current liabilities
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

17
18(a)

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Income tax recoverable
Trade and other receivables
Cash at bank

12

Total current assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

21

8,761,454

11,378,130

Provision for other liabilities

22

5,972,857

5,663,622

297,270

585,613

15,031,581

17,627,365

Net current assets

22,169,749

16,650,064

Total non-current assets and net current assets

54,715,005

50,353,524

Lease liability

18(b)

Total current liabilities

The Financial Statements on pages 56 to 96 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 11 February 2021 and
signed on its behalf by:

			
Director						Director
11 February 2021
The notes on pages 60 to 96 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note
Balance as at 1 January 2019
Profit for the year

Share
capital

Revaluation reserve

Retained
earnings

Proposed
dividends

Total equity

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

61,350

12,464,760

14,280,481

13,741,984

40,548,575

-

-

15,681,896

-

15,681,896

-

1,433,069

-

-

1,433,069

-

(286,972)

286,972

-

-

-

1,146,097

15,968,868

-

17,114,965

-

-

(413)

(13,741,984)

(13,742,397)

-

-

(15,681,896)

15,681,896

-

61,350

13,610,857

14,567,040

15,681,896

43,921,143

Share
capital

Revaluation reserve

Retained
earnings

Proposed
dividends

Total equity

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

61,350

13,610,857

14,567,040

15,681,896

43,921,143

-

-

19,960,174

-

19,960,174

-

(263,980)

263,980

-

-

-

(263,980)

20,224,154

-

19,960,174

-

-

(23,700)

(15,681,896)

(15,705,596)

-

-

(19,926,480)

19,926,480

-

61,350

13,346,877

14,841,014

19,926,480

48,175,721

Other comprehensive income:
Gain on revaluation of buildings, net of tax
Transfer of excess depreciation in respect of
revaluation surplus net of tax

15

Total comprehensive income
Transactions with owners:
Final dividend for 2018
Proposed dividend for 2019

13

Balance as at 31 December 2019

Note
Balance as at 1 January 2020
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Transfer of excess depreciation in respect of
revaluation surplus net of tax

15

Total comprehensive income
Transactions with owners:
Final dividend for 2019
Proposed dividend for 2020
Balance as at 31 December 2020

13

The notes on pages 60 to 96 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

27,063,266

17,990,074

(144,538)

(130,895)

(8,431,669)

(7,216,528)

18,487,059

10,642,651

(399,028)

(992,521)

(399,028)

(992,521)

(554,163)

(415,005)

Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders

(15,705,596)

(13,741,984)

Net cash used in financing activities

(16,259,759)

(14,156,989)

1,828,272

(4,506,859)

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid

25
18 (d)
12

Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

17

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Lease principal payments

18 (d)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash at bank
Cash at bank at start of year

20

12,755,541

17,262,400

Cash at bank at end of year

20

14,583,813

12,755,541

The notes on pages 60 to 96 are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General information
British American Tobacco Uganda Limited (the
“Company”) is incorporated in Uganda under the
Companies Act of Uganda as a limited liability company
and is domiciled in Uganda. The address of its registered
office is:
10th Floor, Lotis Towers
Plot 16, Mackinnon Road, Nakasero
P. O. Box 7100
Kampala, Uganda
For Companies Act of Uganda reporting purposes, the
balance sheet is represented by the statement of financial
position and the profit and loss account by the statement
of comprehensive income in these Financial Statements.
2. Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and the Companies Act of Uganda.
They were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on 11 February 2021.
The measurement basis applied is the historical cost basis,
except for buildings, which have been measured at fair
value.
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the Financial Statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.
Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included
in Note 3.
3. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these Financial Statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
years presented, unless otherwise stated.
(a) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
The Company has initially adopted Definition of a
Business (Amendments to IFRS 3) and Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39
and IFRS 7) from 1 January 2020. A number of other
new standards are also effective from 1 January
2020 but they do not have a material effect on the
Company’s Financial Statements.
The Company applied Definition of a Business
(Amendments to IFRS 3) to business combinations
whose acquisition dates are on or after 1 January 2020
in assessing whether it had acquired a business or a
group of assets.
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(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations
(i) New and amended standards adopted during the
year
New amendments or interpretation effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020 are summarised below:
Amendments to References to
Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards

1 January
2020

Definition of a Business
(Amendments to IFRS 3)

1 January
2020

Definition of Material
(Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8)

1 January
2020

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39
and IFRS 7)

1 January
2020

Extension of the Temporary
Exemption from Applying IFRS 9
(Amendments to IFRS 4)

1 January
2020

Amendments to References to Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards
The IASB decided to revise the Conceptual
Framework because certain important issues were
not covered and certain guidance was unclear or
out of date. The revised Conceptual Framework,
issued by the IASB in March 2018, includes:
a new chapter on measurement;
guidance on reporting financial performance;
improved definitions of an asset and a liability,
and guidance supporting these definitions;
updated recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities; and
clarifications in important areas, such as
the roles of stewardship, prudence and
measurement uncertainty in financial reporting.
The IASB also updated references to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards by
issuing a separate accompanying document,
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards, which outlines the
consequential amendments made to affected IFRS
standards. This was done to support transition to
the revised Conceptual Framework for companies
that develop and apply accounting policies using
the Conceptual Framework when no IFRS standard
or interpretation applies to a particular transaction.
The revised Conceptual Framework will form the
basis of new IFRS standards set by the IASB as well
as future amendments to existing IFRS standards
The adoption of these amendments did not have a
significant impact on the Financial Statements of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations
(continued)
(i) New and amended standards adopted during the
year (continued)
Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)
Defining a business is important because the
financial reporting requirements for the acquisition
of a business are different from the requirements
for the purchase of a group of assets that does not
constitute a business. The proposed amendments
are intended to provide entities with clearer
application guidance to help distinguish between a
business and a group of assets when applying
IFRS 3.
In October 2018 the IASB issued this amendment
to make it easier for companies to decide whether
activities and assets they acquire are a business or
merely a group of assets. The amendments:
Confirm that a business must include inputs
and a process, and clarified that: (i) the process
must be substantive and (ii) the inputs and
process must together significantly contribute
to creating outputs.
Narrow the definitions of a business by focusing
the definition of outputs on goods and services
provided to customers and other income from
ordinary activities, rather than on providing
dividends or other economic benefits directly to
investors or lowering costs; and
Add a test that makes it easier to conclude
that a company has acquired a group of assets,
rather than a business, if the value of the assets
acquired is substantially all concentrated in a
single asset or group of similar assets.
The adoption of these amendments did not have a
significant impact on the Financial Statements of
the Company.
Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and
IAS 8)
The IASB refined its definition of material to make
it easier to understand. It is now aligned across IFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework.
The changes in Definition of Material
(Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) all relate to a
revised definition of ‘material’ which is quoted
below from the final amendments
“Information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose Financial Statements make on the
basis of those Financial Statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting
entity.”
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The Board has also removed the definition of
material omissions or misstatements from IAS
8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.
The amendments are effective from 1 January
2020 but may be applied earlier. However, the
Board does not expect significant change. The
refinements are not intended to alter the concept
of materiality.
The adoption of these amendments did not have a
significant impact on the Financial Statements of
the Company.
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments
to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 have
now been issued to address uncertainties related
to the ongoing reform of interbank offered rates
(IBOR). The amendments provide targeted relief
for financial instruments qualifying for hedge
accounting in the lead up to IBOR reform.
The amendments address issues affecting
financial reporting in the period leading up to IBOR
reform, are mandatory and apply to all hedging
relationships directly affected by uncertainties
related to IBOR reform.
The adoption of these amendments did not have a
significant impact on the Financial Statements of
the Company.
Extension of the Temporary Exemption from
Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4)
Differing effective dates of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and the new insurance contracts
standard could have had a significant impact
on insurers. In response to concerns regarding
temporary accounting mismatches and
volatility, and increased costs and complexity, the
International Accounting Standards Board (the
Board) issued amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts in 2017 with an effective date of 1 January
2020.
The amendments introduced two options that
could reduce the impacts but include various
complexities as summarised as follows;
Temporary exemption from IFRS 9
Rather than having to implement IFRS 9 in 2018,
some companies are permitted to continue to
apply IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement.
To qualify, a reporting company’s activities need
to be predominantly connected with insurance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations
(continued)
(i) New and amended standards adopted during the
year (continued)
Overlay approach
This optional solution provides an overlay
approach to presentation to alleviate temporary
accounting mismatches and volatility.
For designated financial assets, a company is
permitted to reclassify between profit or loss
and other comprehensive income (OCI), the
difference between the amounts recognised in
profit or loss under IFRS 9 and those that would
have been reported under IAS 39.
On the issue of IFRS 17 (Revised) Insurance
Contracts in June 2020, the end date for
applying the two options under the IFRS 4
amendments was extended to 1 January 2023,
aligned with the effective date of IFRS 17.
The adoption of these amendments did not
have a significant impact on the Financial
Statements of the Company.
(ii) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted by 2020
At the date of authorisation of the Financial
Statements of British American Tobacco Uganda
Limited for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
following Standards and Interpretations were in
issue but not yet effective:
New amendments or
interpretation

Effective for
annual
periods
beginning
on or after

Interest Rate Benchmark
reform-Phase 2
(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS
39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS
16)

1 January
2021

Onerous Contracts – Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract
(Amendments to IAS 37)

1 January
2022

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018–2020

1 January
2022

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use
(Amendments to IAS 16)

1 January
2022

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
(Amendments to IFRS 3)

1 January
2022
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Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
(Amendments to IAS 1)

1 January
2023

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
and amendments to IFRS 17
Insurance Contracts

1 January
2023

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions (Amendments
to IFRS 16)

1 June
2020

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture (Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28

Available for
optional
adoption/
effective
date deferred
indefinitely

All standards and Interpretations will be adopted
at their effective date (except for those standards
and Interpretations that are not applicable to the
entity).
Onerous Contracts: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
(Amendments to IAS 37)
Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board,
clarify that the ‘costs of fulfilling a contract’ when
assessing whether a contract is onerous comprise
both:
the incremental costs – e.g. direct labour and
materials; and
an allocation of other direct costs – e.g. an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract.
The amendments apply for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
to contracts existing at the date when the
amendments are first applied. At the date of initial
application, the cumulative effect of applying the
amendments will be recognised as an opening
balance adjustment to retained earnings or
other component of equity, as appropriate.
The comparatives will not be restated. Earlier
application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations
(continued)
(ii) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (continued)
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 20182020
IFRS 1
First-time
Adoption of
International
Financial
Reporting
Standards

IFRS 9
Financial
Instruments

IFRS 16
Leases

IAS 41
Agriculture

The amendment permits
a subsidiary (as a first-time
adopter of IFRS that applies
IFRS later than its parent)
that applies IFRS 1.D16(a)
to measure cumulative
translation differences using
the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s
date of transition to IFRSs.
The amendment clarifies that
for the purpose of performing
the ‘’10 per cent test” for
derecognition of financial
liabilities – in determining
those fees paid net of fees
received, a borrower includes
only fees paid or received
between the borrower and
the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf.
The amendment removes
the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to
leasehold improvements.
As currently drafted, this
example is not clear as to why
such payments are not a lease
incentive.
The amendment removes
the requirement to exclude
cash flows for taxation
when measuring fair value,
thereby aligning the fair value
measurement requirements
in IAS 41 with those in IFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with
earlier application permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company.
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)
The amendment prohibits deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while
bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
BAT Uganda | 2020 Annual Report & Financial Statements

manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling such
items, and the cost of producing those items, in
profit or loss.
Proceeds from selling items before the related item
of property, plant and equipment is available for
use should be recognised in profit or loss, together
with the costs of producing those items. IAS 2
Inventories should be applied in identifying and
measuring these production costs.
Companies will therefore need to distinguish
between:
costs associated with producing and selling
items before the item of property, plant and
equipment is available for use; and
costs associated with making the item of
property, plant and equipment available for its
intended use.
Making this allocation of costs may require
significant estimation and judgement.
The amendments apply for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with
earlier application permitted. The amendments
apply retrospectively, but only to items of property,
plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the Financial Statements in which the Company
first applies the amendments.
The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company.
Reference to the Conceptual Framework
(Amendments to IFRS 3)
The amendment has:
updated IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018
Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989
Framework;
added to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for
transactions and other events within the scope
of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual Framework)
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a
business combination; and
added to IFRS 3 an explicit statement that an
acquirer does not recognise contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.
The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Early
application is permitted if an entity also applies all
other updated references (published together with
the updated Conceptual Framework) at the same
time or earlier.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations
(continued)
(ii) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted by 2020 (continued)
Reference to the Conceptual Framework
(Amendments to IFRS 3) (continued)
The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company.
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (and its related
amendments)
IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and
aims to increase comparability and transparency
about profitability. The new standard introduces
a new comprehensive model (“general model”)
for the recognition and measurement of liabilities
arising from insurance contracts. In addition, it
includes a simplified approach and modifications
to the general measurement model that can be
applied in certain circumstances and to specific
contracts, such as:
Reinsurance contracts held;
Direct participating contracts; and
Investment contracts with discretionary
participation features.
Under the new standard, investment components
are excluded from insurance revenue and service
expenses. Entities can also choose to present
the effect of changes in discount rates and other
financial risks in profit or loss or OCI.

a right to defer settlement must have substance
and exist at the end of the reporting period.
There is limited guidance on how to determine
whether a right has substance and the assessment
may require management to exercise interpretive
judgement.
The existing requirement to ignore management’s
intentions or expectations for settling a liability
when determining its classification is unchanged.
The amendments are to be applied retrospectively
from the effective date.
The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company.
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)
The amendments require the full gain to be
recognised when assets transferred between an
investor and its associate or joint venture meet the
definition of a ‘business’ under IFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Where the assets transferred do
not meet the definition of a business, a partial
gain to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests
in the associate or joint venture is recognised. The
definition of a business is key to determining the
extent of the gain to be recognised.
The IASB has decided to defer the effective date
for these amendments indefinitely. Adoption is still
permitted.

The new standard includes various new disclosures
and requires additional granularity in disclosures
to assist users to assess the effects of insurance
contracts on the entity’s Financial Statements.

When a parent loses control of a subsidiary in a
transaction with an associate or joint venture (JV),
there is a conflict between the existing guidance
on consolidation and equity accounting.

The Company is in the process of determining the
impact of IFRS 17 and will provide more detailed
disclosure on the impact in future Financial
Statements.

Under the consolidation standard, the parent
recognises the full gain on the loss of control. But
under the standard on associates and JVs, the
parent recognises the gain only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or JV.

The standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Early adoption
is permitted only if the entity applied IFRS 9.
The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company.
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
(Amendments to IAS 1)
Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies
classify a liability as current when they do not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the end of
the reporting period. As part of its amendments,
the Board has removed the requirement for a right
to be unconditional and instead, now requires that
ON THE UGANDA SECURITIES EXCHANGE 2000 - 2020

In either case, the loss is recognised in full if the
underlying assets are impaired.
In response to this conflict and the resulting
diversity in practice, on 11 September 2014 the IASB
issued Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28).
The amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations
(continued)
(ii) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted by 2020 (continued)
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2
(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16)
The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting as a result of the reform of an
interest rate benchmark, including the effects
of changes to contractual cash flows or hedging
relationships arising from the replacement of
an interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark rate. The amendments provide
practical relief from certain requirements in IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 relating to:
Change in basis for determining cash flows
The amendments will require an entity to account
for a change in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of a financial asset or
financial liability that is required by interest rate
benchmark reform by updating the effective
interest rate of the financial asset or financial
liability.
Hedge accounting
The amendments provide exceptions to the hedge
accounting requirements in the following areas:
Allow amendment of the designation of a
hedging relationship to reflect changes that are
required by the reform.
When a hedged item in a cash flow hedge
is amended to reflect the changes that
are required by the reform, the amount
accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve
will be deemed to be based on the alternative
benchmark rate on which the hedged future
cash flows are determined.
When a group of items is designated as a
hedged item and an item in the group is
amended to reflect the changes that are
required by the reform, the hedged items
are allocated to sub groups based on the
benchmark rates being hedged.
If an entity reasonably expects that an
alternative benchmark rate will be separately
identifiable within a period of 24 months, it is
not prohibited from designating the rate as a
non contractually specified risk component if it
is not separately identifiable at the designation
date.
Disclosure
The amendments will require the Company
to disclose additional information about the
entity’s exposure to risks arising from interest rate
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benchmark reform and related risk management
activities.
Transition
The Company plans to apply the amendments
from 1 January 2021. Application will not impact
amounts reported for 2020 or prior periods.
COVID-19 Related rent concessions
(Amendments to IFRS 16)
The amendments introduce an optional practical
expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts
for rent concessions that are a direct consequence
of COVID-19. A lessee that applies the practical
expedient is not required to assess whether
eligible rent concessions are lease modifications,
and accounts for them in accordance with other
applicable guidance. The resulting accounting will
depend on the details of the rent concession.
The practical expedient will only apply if:
the revised consideration is substantially the
same or less than the original consideration;
the reduction in lease payments relates to
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and
no other substantive changes have been made
to the terms of the lease.
Lessees applying the practical expedient are
required to disclose:
that fact, if they have applied the practical
expedient to all eligible rent concessions and, if
not, the nature of the contracts to which they
have applied the practical expedient; and
the amount recognised in profit or loss for the
reporting period arising from application of the
practical expedient.
The adoption of these amendments is not
expected to have a material impact on the
Financial Statements of the Company as the
Company has not had any lease concessions.
(c) Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company recognises revenue in accordance with
the core principle of IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
with customers by applying the following five steps:
Step 1:

Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

Step 2:

Identify the performance obligations in
the contract;

Step 3:

Determine the transaction price;

Step 4:

Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract;

Step 5:

Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(c) Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)
Revenue is recognised in the correct period (“cut-off”
issue) and reported only where control of the goods
has passed to the customer. This signifies that BAT
Uganda has satisfied a performance obligation to its
customer in accordance with the requirements of the
contract with that customer (steps 1, 2 and 5 of the
Revenue model).
Revenue must be recognised and measured at the
correct valuation after taking account of rebates, trade
activities, returns and other adjustments to reported
revenue in accordance with the requirements of the
contract with that customer (steps 1, 3 and 4 of the
Revenue model).
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Company’s
activities. Net revenue is shown after excluding valueadded tax (VAT), excise duty, rebates and discounts.
Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance
obligations, including significant payment terms:
Customers obtain control of the products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted at
their premises. Invoices are generated at that point in
time. Invoices are payable within 28 days.
Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered
and have been accepted by customers at their
premises.
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
Rental income is recognised as other income. This is
from subleased property based on valid contracts.
(d) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the Financial Statements are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (‘the
functional currency’). The Financial Statements are
presented in Uganda Shillings (Ushs) rounded to the
nearest thousands. Uganda Shillings is the Company’s
functional currency.
(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the Company using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
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Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in profit or loss within ‘net finance income
or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in profit or loss within ‘other income’ or
‘other expenses’.
(e) Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement
Buildings are shown at fair value, based on periodic,
but at least triennial, valuations by external
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for
buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at the date
of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset. All other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
(ii) Subsequent cost
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of land and buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income and show as a revaluation
reserve in equity. Decreases that offset previous
increases of the same asset are charged in other
comprehensive income and debited against the
revaluation reserve, all other decreases are charged
to profit or loss. Each year the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of the asset (the depreciation charged to profit or loss)
and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.
(iii) Depreciation
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
Buildings

2% - 5%

Lease hold properties

Over the period of lease

Plant and machinery

7%

Fixtures and fittings

33.3% - 10%

Equipment and
motor vehicles

20%-33.3%

Right-of-use assets

Over the period of lease
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(iii) Depreciation (continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that
suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.
(iv) Disposal of property and equipment
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.
(f) Leases
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company uses the definition of
a lease in IFRS 16. This policy is applied to contracts
entered, on or after 1 January 2019.
As a lessee
At commencement or on modification of a contract
that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component based on its relative stand‑alone
prices. However, for the leases of property the
Company has elected not to separate non‑lease
components and account for the lease and non‑lease
components as a single lease component.
The Company recognises a right‑of‑use asset and a
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right‑of‑use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received.

commencement date to the end of the lease term,
unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset to the Company by the end of the lease term
or the cost of the right‑of‑use asset reflects that
the Company will exercise a purchase option. In
that case the right‑of‑use asset will be depreciated
over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is
determined on the same basis as those of property
and equipment. In addition, the right‑of‑use asset
is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any,
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease
liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, and the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The
Company determines its incremental borrowing
rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments
to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset
leased.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following:
fixed payments, including in‑substance fixed
payments;
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;
amounts expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee; and
the exercise price under a purchase option that
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Company is
reasonably certain not to terminate early.
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change
in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or
if there is a revised in‑substance fixed lease payment.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right‑of‑use asset or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right‑of‑use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The right‑of‑use asset is subsequently depreciated
using the straight‑line method from the
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(f) Leases (continued)
The Company presents right‑of‑use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property and
lease liabilities separately in the statement of financial
position.
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company has elected not to recognise right‑of‑use
assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value assets
and short‑term leases, including IT equipment. The
Company recognises the lease payments associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight‑line basis
over the lease term.
As a lessor
At inception or on modification of a contract that
contains a lease component, the Company allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease
component based on their relative stand- alone prices.
When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease.
To classify each lease, the Company makes an
overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it
is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Company considers certain indicators such as whether
the lease is for the major part of the economic life of
the asset.
When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it
accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification
of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Company applies the exemption described
above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.
If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease
components, then the Company applies IFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration in the contract.
The Company applies the derecognition and
impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net
investment in the lease. The Company further
regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual
values used in calculating the gross investment in the
lease.
The Company recognises lease payments received
under operating leases as income on a straight- line
basis over the lease term as part of ‘other income’.
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(g) Financial instruments
i. Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognized when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. The financial assets are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered and the definitions of a
financial asset. Investments are stated at cost, the
carrying amount is reduced if there is any indication
of impairment in value. The financial assets include
deposits, loans, trade receivables and other receivables.
At initial recognition, trade receivables that do not
have a significant financing component are measured
at their transaction price.
Financial assets (other than short term trade
receivables) and financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value; in case of a financial asset or
financial liability at amortised cost, plus or minus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial
liability.
Classification and subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows. On initial
recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured
at: amortized cost; FVOCI – debt investment; FVOCI –
equity investment; or FVTPL.
Financial assets are classified based on both:
The entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets; and
The contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset.
The prevailing model for subsequent measurement of
a financial asset under IFRS 9 is the fair value model
(fair value through profit or loss).
Assets held solely to receive payments of principle
and interest (SPPI) will be held at amortised cost, with
all other financial assets held at fair value. A financial
asset shall be subsequently measured at amortised
cost if and only if both of the following conditions are
met:
The financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payment of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
This category includes trade receivables and bank
deposits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)
i. Financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables and other receivables
Trade receivables and other receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at an amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method (EIR), less
impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by considering any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in other income in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The losses arising from impairment are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income as provisions.
De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;
The Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
Either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.
In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company
has retained.
Offsetting financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported on the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amount and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
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Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.
Impairment
At each reporting date, the Company measures the
loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the
credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, whether or not
any actual losses have been recognized, and whether
or not the entity has insurance cover or guarantee in
place to cover the potential economic loss.
The Company recognizes loss allowance for expected
credit losses on all financial assets-investments,
derivatives, loans, trade receivables, etc.
Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses.
When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s
historical experience and information and including
forward-looking information.
The Company assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 28 days past due. The Company considers a
financial asset to be in default when the distributor is
unlikely to pay the credit obligations to the Company
in full.
IFRS 9 uses a “three bucket model” for measuring loss
allowance based on deterioration in credit rating after
initial recognition.
Bucket 1: if at the reporting date, the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, an entity shall measure
the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to 12- month expected credit
losses, whether or not any actual losses have been
recognized, and whether or not the entity has
insurance cover or guarantees in place to cover the
potential economic loss;
Bucket 2: at each reporting date, an entity shall
measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition,
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)
ii. Financial assets (continued)
Impairment (continued)
and whether or not the entity has insurance cover or
guarantees in place to cover the potential economic
loss;
Bucket 3: Where there is objective evidence of actual
impairment, a lifetime credit loss is recognized and
the effective interest rate is based on the net (postimpairment) amount.
The standard approach is applied to any financial
assets held by the Company that have not been
recognized as result of applying the revenue standard
(IFRS 15) and leasing standard (IFRS 16). This approach
applies to any trade receivables which are potentially
subject to factoring arrangements, and any trade
receivables that have been converted into loans.
Simplified approach for trade receivables and lease
receivables
IFRS 9 has a simplified approach for the recognition
of impairment for trade receivables, contract assets
and lease receivables. The Company measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses for:
(a) Trade receivables or contract assets that result
from transactions that are within the scope of IFRS
15 Revenue,
(b) Lease receivables that result from transactions
that are within the scope of IAS 17 (or IFRS 16, when
implemented).
BAT Uganda calculates the expected credit losses
on trade receivables using a provision matrix. The
Company uses its historical credit loss experience for
trade receivables to estimate the lifetime expected
credit losses on the financial assets as relevant.
Measurement of Expected Credit Losses
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive).
ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the
financial asset.
ii. Financial liabilities
Initial recognition
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value;
in case of a financial liability at amortized cost, plus or
minus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability.
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Classification and Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at
amortized cost or FVTPL.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss: A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held-for-trading, it’s a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognized in profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expenses and foreign gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, amounts due to related parties and
borrowings.
De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires: When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
(h) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the Business if longer), they are a classified as current
asset. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less provision for
impairment (note g).
(i) Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the Business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(j) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any differences
between proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value are recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, using the effective
interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
(k) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when; the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
(l) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as ‘share capital’ in
equity. Any premium received over and above the par
value of the shares is classified as ‘share premium’ in
equity.
(m) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the statement of financial position.
(n) Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefit obligations
The Company is a participating employer in a
retirement benefits umbrella scheme. The Company
and all its employees also contribute to National Social
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Security Fund, which are defined contribution benefit
schemes.
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Company pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in
the current and prior periods.
The Company’s contributions to the defined
contribution schemes are recognised as an employee
benefit expense when they fall due. The Company has
no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.
(ii) Other entitlements
The estimated monetary liability for employees
accrued annual leave entitlement at the statement
of financial position date is recognised as an expense
accrual.
The Company recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.
(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Company recognises termination benefits when
it is demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate the
employment of current employees without possibility
of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period are discounted to their present
value.
(o) Income tax
a) Current income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
Current income tax is the amount of income tax
payable or receivable on the taxable profit or loss for
the year determined in accordance with the relevant
tax legislation. The current income tax charge is
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(o) Income tax (continued)
a) Current income tax
calculated based on the tax enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate based on
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the Financial Statements. However,
deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the statement of financial
position date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

In calculating interest income and expense, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not creditimpaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become creditimpaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation
of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on
a net basis as either finance income or finance cost
depending on whether foreign currency movements
are in a net gain or net loss position.
(r) Comparatives
The comparative information throughout these
Financial Statements has not been restated. There
were no new standards that required restatement of
the comparative information.
(s) Related party transactions
The Company discloses the amounts outstanding
at the end of each financial year with related parties,
which include transactions with executive and nonexecutive officers and group or related companies. The
related party transactions are at arm’s length.
(t) Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data
for ordinary shares are presented in the Financial
Statements. Basic EPS is calculated by diving profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the group
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the basic EPS
for all dilutive potential ordinary shares if any.

(p) Dividends
Dividends on ordinary shares are charged to equity
in the period in which they are declared. Proposed
dividends are shown as a separate component of
equity until declared.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including experience of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

(q) Finance income and finance costs
Finance income and finance costs comprise interest
income, interest expense and foreign currency gains or
losses on financial assets and financial liabilities.

(i) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Company makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the
effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to:
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
the amortised cost of the financial liability.
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The Company is subject to income taxes in Uganda.
Significant judgment is required in determining
the Company’s provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
(i) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)
Income Taxes (continued)
ordinary course of business. The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the Directors make judgements in determining
whether tax assets are impaired.
The Company engages in transactions with related parties which are subject to the Uganda Revenue Authority
transfer pricing regulations. The transfer pricing rules require directors’ judgement in arriving at the treatment of
related party transactions especially with regards to benchmarking of transactions to achieve the arm’s length
principle.
Property, plant and equipment
Critical estimates are made by the Directors in determining depreciation rates for property, plant and equipment.
The Company also makes estimates in the determination of fair value for the assets that are accounted for using the
fair value model. The rates used are on Note 3 (e).
Legal provisions, contingent assets and liabilities
Significant judgment and estimation is made by the Directors in determining the Company’s litigation provisions
and contingent disclosures. Key assumptions are made with respect to the likelihood and magnitude of any
potential outflow of resources. The provisions and contingencies are further disclosed in Note 22 and 23.
Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
Key assumptions are made in determining the weighted-average loss rates. Refer to note 3 (h).
(ii) Critical judgement in applying the entity’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made judgements in determining:
The classification of financial assets and leases.
Whether the assets are impaired.
Provisions for litigations.
Going concern.
5. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
(a) Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance.
The Company does not hedge any of its risk exposures.
Financial risk management is carried out by the finance department under policies approved by the board of
directors. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company’s activities.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – e.g. foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices –
will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
5. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Company is exposed to transactional foreign currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between
the currencies in which sales, purchases, receivables and borrowings are denominated and the respective
functional currencies of Group companies. The functional currencies of Group companies are primarily the
US Dollar (USD), British Pound (GBP) and Kenya Shilling (KSh). The currencies in which these transactions are
primarily denominated are USD, GBP and KSh.
The Company purchases finished goods from Kenya and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, and recognised assets and liabilities.
Management’s policy to manage foreign exchange risk is to hold foreign currency bank accounts which act as a
natural hedge for purchases of imported finished goods.
At 31 December 2020, if the Uganda Shilling had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the US Dollar (USD),
the British Pound (GBP) and the Kenya Shilling (KSh) with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and equity would have been Ushs 120 million, Ushs 5.6 million and Ushs 6 million higher/lower,
respectively. This is mainly as a result of USD and GBP denominated trade receivables, trade payables, bank
loans, intercompany payables and receivables, and bank balances respectively.
Below is a summary of the financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at their carrying
amounts:

31 December 2020

Ushs

USD

GBP

KSh

1,390,250

380,579

-

-

1,390,250

380,579

-

-

(2,797,774)

(709,750)

(11,181)

(1,755,743)

(2,797,774)

(709,750)

(11,181)

(1,755,743)

(1,407,524)

(329,171)

(11,181)

(1,755,743)

Ushs

USD

GBP

KSh

18,869

5,141

-

-

535,405

145,887

-

-

554,274

151,028

-

-

(2,873,696)

(730,487)

(39,656)

-

(2,873,696)

(730,487)

(39,656)

-

(2,319,422)

(579,459)

(39,656)

-

Ushs’000

Monetary assets
Cash at bank

Monetary liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net statement of financial position exposure

31 December 2019

Ushs’000

Monetary assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash at bank

Monetary liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net statement of financial position exposure
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
5. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)
The following are the exchange rates that existed at the financial year end for the following significant
currencies:
Average rates

Closing rates

2020

2019

2020

2019

USD

3,718

3,704

3,653

3,670

GBP

4,771

4,729

4,993

4,862

KSh

35

36

34

36

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the US Dollar (USD), British Pound (GBP) or Kenya
Shilling (KSh) against all other currencies at 31 December would have affected the measurement of financial
instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown
below.
The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact
of forecast sales and purchases
Profit or loss

Equity, net of tax

Strengthening

Weakening

Strengthening

Weakening

Ushs’000

Ushs’000

Ushs’000

Ushs’000

USD (10% movement)

120,246

(120,246)

92,589

(92,589)

GBP (10% movement)

5,583

(5,583)

4,299

(4,299)

KSh (10% movement

5,970

(5,970)

4,597

(4,597)

USD (10% movement)

212,662

(212,662)

163,749

(163,749)

GBP (10% movement)

19,281

(19,281)

14,846

(14,846)

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. The
carrying amounts of financial assets and contract assets represent the maximum credit exposure.
Credit risk is managed by the head of finance with support from the finance manager who is responsible for
managing and analysing credit risk for each new client before standard payment and delivery terms are offered.
The Company does not have any significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk in respect of cash at bank
is managed by monitoring the Company’s net exposure with each financial institution where the Company
maintains bank balances.
For trade receivables, the credit controller assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its
financial position, experience and other factors. The Company does not grade the credit quality of receivables.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal ratings in accordance with limits set by the Board. The utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
5. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Set out below is a summary of amounts that represent the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits
Trade and other receivables

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

14,583,813

12,755,541

22,474,636

21,052,823

37,058,449

33,808,364

The Company does not grade the credit quality of receivables. All receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
and are within their approved credit limits. None of the above assets are past due. The impairment losses on
financial assets recognised in profit or loss were as follows.

Provision for impairment losses

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

(8,203)

(898)

Trade receivables and contract assets
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including
the default risk associated with the area in which customers operate.
The Credit Committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually
for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The
Company’s review includes external ratings, if they are available, Financial Statements, bank guarantee information,
industry information and in some cases bank references. Any sales exceeding those limits require approval from the
Credit Committee.
The Company limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables by establishing a maximum payment period of
twenty-eight (28) days.
All the Company’s customers have been transacting with the Company for over ten years, and none of these
customers’ balances have been written off or are credit‑impaired at the reporting date.
The Company does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables but rather requires their
customers to have bank guarantees. The Company does not have trade receivable and contract assets for which no
loss allowance is recognised because of collateral and bank guarantees.
At 31 December 2020, the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region was as follows:
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

West

5,800,762

6,223,818

East

3,870,925

3,657,032

South

2,298,074

1,921,980

North

1,172,793

622,072

13,142,554

12,424,902
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
5. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)
At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the balance due from the Company’s most significant customer was
Shs 6,377 million (2019: Shs 6,505 million). This customer operates in the West and North regions of Uganda.
Expected credit loss assessment for individual customers
The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables from individual customers, which
comprise a very large number of small balances.
Loss rates are calculated using a ‘roll rate’ method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through
successive stages of delinquency to write‑off. Loss rates are calculated separately for exposures in different
segments based on the following common credit risk characteristics – amount of the bank guarantee, age of
customer debt and payments made to offset the debt on account.
The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and
contract assets from individual customers as at 31 December 2020.

31 December 2020

Weighted
Average loss
rate

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Loss
Allowance

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Credit
Impaired

Current (Not Past Due)

0.10%

6,851,059

(6,851)

No

1-30 days past due

0.12%

6,305,914

(7,568)

No

31-60 days past due

0.14%

-

-

61-90 days past due

0.16%

-

-

More than 90 days past due

0.18%

-

-

13,156,973

(14,419)

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past five years. These rates are multiplied by scalar
factors to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historical data has
been collected, current conditions and the Company’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and
contract assets from individual customers as at 31 December 2019.

31 December 2019

Weighted
Average loss
rate

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Loss
Allowance

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Current (Not Past Due)

0.05%

12,431,118

(6,216)

1-30 days past due

0.06%

-

-

31-60 days past due

0.07%

-

-

61-90 days past due

0.08%

-

-

More than 90 days past due

0.09%

-

-

12,431,118

(6,216)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
5. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
Movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables and contract assets
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables and contract assets during the year
was as follows:
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Opening balance

6,216

5,318

Additional provision – IFRS 9

8,203

898

Closing balance

14,419

6,216

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Ushs 14,584 million at 31 December 2020 (2019: Ushs 12,756 million).
The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are rated A- based
on Moody ratings.
Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12‑month expected loss basis and reflects the
short maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk
based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties. The Company uses a similar approach for assessment of
ECLs for cash and cash equivalents to those used for debt securities.
The amount of impairment allowance at 31 December 2020 is Nil (2019: Nil).
Guarantees
The Company’s policy is to get financial guarantees from banks for its individual customers. At 31 December
2020, the Company has received bank guarantees from certain banks in respect of credit facilities granted to its
customers.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Company’s objective when managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash balances, and the availability of funding
from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the finance department maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.
Management perform cash flow forecasting and monitor rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity requirements
to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet its operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities at all times so that the Company does not breach borrowing limits or covenants
(where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities. The Company’s approach when managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without incurring
unacceptable losses or putting the Company’s reputation at risk.
The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities that will be settled on a net basis. The Company’s
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
5. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
financial liabilities, which are set out in the table below. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Contractual cash flows
31 December 2020

Trade and other payables
Lease liability

Carrying
amount

Total

1 year or less

More than 1
year

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

8,761,454

8,761,454

8,761,454

-

917,562

1,072,919

388,348

684,571

9,679,016

9,834,373

9,149,802

684,571

Contractual cash flows
31 December 2019

Carrying
amount

Total

1 year or less

More than 1
year

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Trade and other payables

11,378,130

11,378,130

11,378,130

-

Lease liability

1,592,972

1,789,058

621,589

1,167,469

12,971,102

13,167,188

11,999,719

1,167,469

The Company did not have any borrowings during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
Capital management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may limit the amounts of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.
The Company monitors capital based on the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity, as
shown in the statement of financial position, plus net debt. There were no outstanding borrowings at year end.
Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous
market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.
All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. In certain
circumstances, the initial fair value may be based on a valuation technique which may lead to the recognition of
profits or losses at the time of initial recognition.
However, these profits or losses can only be recognised when the valuation technique used is based solely on
observable market inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
5. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
The fair value for the majority of the Company’s financial instruments is based on observable market prices or
derived from observable market parameters.
The tables below sets out a comparison by category of the carrying and fair values of the Company’s financial
instruments.

2020

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total Value

Carrying
Value

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Cash and bank balances

-

14,583,813

-

14,583,813

14,583,813

Trade and other receivables

-

22,474,636

22,474,636

22,474,636

Total

-

22,474,636

37,058,449

37,058,449

Financial Assets

14,583,813

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables

-

8,761,454

8,761,454

87,614,534

Provisions for other liabilities

-

5,972,857

5,972,857

5,972,857

Total

-

-

14,734,311

14,734,311

14,734,311

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total Value

Carrying
Value

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Cash and bank balances

-

12,755,541

-

12,755,541

12,755,541

Trade and other receivables

-

-

21,052,823

21,052,823

21,052,823

Total

-

12,755,541

21,052,823

33,808,364

33,808,364

Trade and other payables

-

-

11,378,130

11,378,130

11,378,130

Provisions for other liabilities

-

-

5,663,622

5,663,622

5,663,622

Total

-

-

17,041,752

17,041,752

17,041,752

2019

Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
6. Revenue
(a) Net revenue and operating profit
For purposes of IFRS 8 – Operating Segments, the Company’s Managing Director is considered to be the Chief
Operating Decision Maker. The Company is a single product business distributing cigarettes. While the Company
has clearly differentiated brands, detailed segmentation between a wide portfolio of brands may not be presented
without a high degree of estimation. The information provided below on revenue and operating profit provides an
additional analysis of the Business although the Company is managed as one entity.
The Company’s assets are managed as part of one business unit. All the Company’s non-current assets are located
in Uganda.
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Total sales

164,829,196

167,644,278

Value added tax and excise duty

(82,761,817)

(88,825,453)

(1,999,679)

(2,026,128)

(820,014)

(1,357,174)

79,247,686

75,435,523

Distributor performance-based pay
Distributor rebates
Net revenue

(b) Revenue streams
The Company generates revenue primarily from shipment and distribution of cigarettes to its customers. Other
sources of revenue include rental income from leasing of properties.
Note

Revenue from contracts with customers
Other Revenue
Total Revenue
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2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

79,247,686

75,435,523

2,363,952

2,351,173

81,611,638

77,786,696
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
6. Revenue (continued)
(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical market,
major products and timing of revenue recognition.
Primary geographical markets

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

West

26,859,239

28,955,225

East

26,326,684

23,408,914

South

16,997,046

15,456,261

North

9,064,717

7,615,123

79,247,686

75,435,523

67,406,935

62,529,936

11,840,751

12,905,587

79,247,686

75,435,523

79,247,686

75,435,523

-

-

79,247,686

75,435,523

Other revenue

2,363,952

2,351,173

Total Revenue

81,611,638

77,786,696

Total Revenue
Major products/service lines
Value For Money (VFM)
Global Drive Strategic Brands (GDSBs)
Total Revenue

Timing of revenue recognition
Products transferred at a point in time
Products transferred over time

(d) Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts
with customers.
Note

Receivables, which are included in ‘trade and other receivables

19 (a)

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

13,156,973

12,431,118

No information is provided about remaining performance obligations at 31 December 2020 or at 31 December 2019
that have an original expected duration of one year or less, as allowed by IFRS 15.

ON THE UGANDA SECURITIES EXCHANGE 2000 - 2020

BAT Uganda | 2020 Annual Report & Financial Statements

83

Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
6. Revenue (continued)
(e) Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognises
revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer.
The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations
in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.
Type of product/service

Cigarettes

Nature and timing of satisfaction of Revenue recognition policies
performance obligations, including
significant payment terms
Customers obtain control of
cigarettes when the goods are
delivered to and have been
accepted at their premises.
Invoices are generated at that
point in time. Invoices are
usually payable within 28 days.
All contracts permit the
customer to return an item.
Returned goods are exchanged
only for new goods. No cash
refunds are offered.

Revenue is recognised when the
goods are delivered and have
been accepted by customers at
their premises.
For contracts that permit the
customer to return an item,
revenue is recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.

7. Cost of sales
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

29,003,330

27,993,841

619,456

488,999

29,622,786

28,482,840

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

2,363,952

2,351,173

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

383,208

157,174

Interest expense – lease (note 18(b))

(144,538)

(130,895)

Net foreign exchange loss

(176,002)

(2,826)

62,668

23,453

Cost of goods sold
Royalties
Cost of Sales

8. Other income

Miscellaneous income

Miscellaneous income is mainly rental income generated from leasing of properties.
9. Net finance income

Interest income
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10. Profit before income tax
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

2,955,578

3,762,093

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 17)

912,440

1,063,595

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 18(a))

580,147

445,564

Profit before tax is arrived at after charging the following:
Employee benefits expense (note 11)

Cost of sales (note 7)

29,622,786

28,482,840

Auditor’s remuneration

281,758

269,690

Repairs and maintenance expenses

95,409

101,630

Transportation costs

159,027

336,338

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Salaries and wages

2,621,915

3,316,531

Redundancy costs

7,640

48,221

Defined contribution scheme

110,040

64,710

National Social Security Fund

215,983

332,631

2,955,578

3,762,093

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

8,050,420

5,726,077

Rental income tax

707,433

702,840

Deferred tax (note 16)

165,678

339,766

Prior year under provision for deferred tax (note 16)

328,292

11,894

9,251,823

6,780,577

11. Employee benefits expense

The following items are included within employee benefits expense:

Retirement benefits costs:

12. Income tax expense

Current income tax charge

Income tax expense
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
12. Income tax expense (continued)
The tax on the Company’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
statutory income tax rate as follows:
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Profit before income tax

29,211,997

22,462,473

Tax calculated at the statutory income tax rate of 30% (2019:30%)

8,763,599

6,738,742

(547,501)

(672,899)

Prior year under provision for deferred tax (note 16)

328,292

11,894

Rental income tax charge

707,433

702,840

9,251,823

6,780,577

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Tax payable/(recoverable) at start of year

(469,065)

318,546

Current income tax charge

8,050,420

5,726,077

707,433

702,840

(8,431,669)

(7,216,528)

(142,881)

(469,065)

Tax effect of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Income tax expense

The movement in the current tax recoverable/ (payable) amount is as set out below:

Rental income tax charge
Tax paid
Tax recoverable at end of year

13. Earnings per share and dividends
(a) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (Ushs’ 000)
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue (thousands)
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Ushs)

2020

2019

19,960,174

15,681,896

49,080

49,080

407

320

There were no potentially dilutive shares outstanding at 31 December 2020 or 2019. Diluted earnings per share are
therefore the same as basic earnings per share.
(b) Dividends per share
At the Annual General Meeting to be held in May 2021, a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020 of Shs 406 per share amounting to Shs 19,926 million (2019: Shs 320 per share, amounting to Shs 15,682 million)
will be offered to the Company’s shareholders. These Financial Statements do not reflect this dividend as a liability.
Payment of dividends is subject to withholding tax at a rate of either 10% or 15% depending on the residence of the
respective shareholders.
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14. Share capital

At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2019 and 2020

Number of shares

Ordinary shares

(Thousands)

Ushs’ 000

49,080

61,350

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 64,000,000 with a par value of Shs. 1.25 per share. Issued share capital
consists of 49,079,984 ordinary shares fully paid for at a par value of Shs 1.25. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
15. Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve represents the surplus on the revaluation of buildings and freehold land net of deferred tax. This
reserve is not available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders.
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

13,610,857

12,464,760

Revaluation gains on buildings

-

2,047,242

Deferred income tax in respect to revaluation gain

-

(614,173)

At start of year

Net revaluation gains on buildings
Transfer of excess depreciation in respect of revaluation surplus
Deferred tax on excess depreciation

At end of year

-

1,433,069

(377,114)

(409,960)

113,134

122,988

(263,980)

(286,972)

13,346,877

13,610,857

16. Deferred income tax
Deferred tax is calculated using the enacted income tax rate of 30% (2019: 30%). The movement on the deferred tax
account is as follows:
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

5,425,022

4,472,701

165,678

339,766

Deferred tax to equity

-

(13,512)

Deferred tax to OCI

-

614,173

328,292

11,894

5,918,992

5,425,022

At start of year
Charge to profit or loss (note 12)

Prior year under provision

At end of year

Because of the uncertainty in estimating the extent to which the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities will
crystallise within 12 months from the year end, the Company’s entire net deferred tax liability has been classified as a
non-current liability.
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16. Deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax charge in the profit or loss are attributable to the following items:

Year ended 31 December 2020

1-Jan-2020

Prior Year
balance
movement

Revised
Balance

Charged to P/L

31-Dec
2020

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

901,392

328,292

1,229,684

210,868

1,440,552

6,346,873

-

6,346,873

-

6,346,873

7,248,265

328,292

7,576,557

210,868

7,787,425

(48,795)

-

(48,795)

66,070

17,275

(1,774,448)

-

(1,774,448)

(111,260)

(1,885,708)

(1,823,243)

-

(1,823,243)

(45,190)

(1,868,433)

5,425,022

328,292

5,753,314

165,678

5,918,992

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment:
on historical cost basis
on revaluation surpluses

Deferred tax assets
Unrealised foreign exchange losses
Provisions

Net deferred tax liability

Year ended 31 December 2019

1-Jan-2019

Prior Year
balance
movement

Revised
Balance

Charged to
Retained
Earnings

Charged to
P/L

Charged to
OCI

31-Dec
2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

833,412

11,894

845,306

(13,512)

69,598

-

901,392

5,732,700

-

5,732,700

-

-

614,173

6,346,873

6,566,112

11,894

6,578,006

(13,512)

69,598

614,173

7,248,265

(11,244)

-

(11,244)

-

(37,551)

-

(48,795)

(2,082,167)

-

(2,082,167)

-

307,719

-

(1,774,448)

(2,093,411)

-

(2,093,411)

-

270,168

-

(1,823,243)

4,472,701

11,894

4,484,595

(13,512)

339,766

614,173

5,425,022

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and
equipment:
on historical cost basis
on revaluation surpluses

Deferred tax assets
Unrealised foreign exchange
losses
Provisions

Net deferred tax liability
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17. Property, plant and equipment
Buildings and
freehold land

Plant, machinery
and equipment

Capital work in
progress

Total

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

36,652,861

4,037,894

-

40,690,755

-

948,150

44,371

992,521

2,047,242

-

-

2,047,242

Balance at 31 December 2019

38,700,103

4,986,044

44,371

43,730,518

Balance at 1 January 2020

38,700,103

4,986,044

44,371

43,730,518

-

399,028

-

399,028

38,700,103

5,385,072

44,371

44,129,546

(7,916,095)

(2,551,335)

-

(10,467,430)

(937,728)

(125,867)

-

(1,063,595)

Balance at 31 December 2019

(8,853,823)

(2,677,202)

-

(11,531,025)

Balance at 1 January 2020

(8,853,823)

(2,677,202)

-

(11,531,025)

(687,060)

(225,380)

-

(912,440)

(9,540,883)

(2,902,582)

-

(12,443,465)

At 1 January 2019

28,736,766

1,486,559

-

30,223,325

At 31 December 2019

29,846,280

2,308,842

44,371

32,199,493

At 31 December 2020

29,159,220

2,482,490

44,371

31,686,081

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2019
Additions
Revaluation gain

Additions
Balance at 31 December 2020
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2019
Depreciation

Depreciation
Balance at 31 December 2020
Carrying amounts

The asset class ‘Buildings and freehold land’ relates to buildings only. British American Tobacco Uganda Limited, whose
majority shareholding (more than 50%) is by foreign entities, is not eligible to hold freehold land under the Land Act
(Cap 227).
Buildings were revalued in 2019 by independent valuers. Valuations were made based on the open market value. Open
market values were determined by reference to observable prices in the open market and recent market transactions
conducted at arm’s length terms.
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17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The Company measured the Buildings to fair value and recognised a gain of Uganda shillings 1,433,069 (net of tax)
recognised in the OCI. The book values of the properties were adjusted for the revaluations and the resultant surplus
net of deferred tax was credited to the revaluation surplus in shareholders’ equity. As at 31 December 2020, there was no
material difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of property, plant and equipment. If the buildings
were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

17,051,976

17,051,976

(7,870,303)

(7,507,442)

9,181,673

9,544,534

18. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
(a) Right-of-use assets
Motor Vehicles

Office Space

Stores

Total

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

411,278

-

39,336

450,614

757,208

741,709

-

1,498,917

(349,937)

(74,171)

(21,456)

(445,564)

At 31 December 2019

818,549

667,538

17,880

1,503,967

At 1 January 2020

818,549

667,538

17,880

1,503,967

51,408

-

42,912

94,320

Disposals/terminations

(168,490)

-

-

(168,490)

Depreciation charge for the year

(409,726)

(148,965)

(21,456)

(580,147)

3,638

5,887

-

9,525

295,379

524,460

39,336

859,175

Motor Vehicles

Office Space

Stores

Total

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

At 1 January 2019

455,939

-

39,714

495,653

Additions (New leases)

757,208

741,709

-

1,498,917

91,225

36,252

3,418

130,895

(485,682)

(95,696)

(24,000)

(605,378)

-

72,885

-

72,885

Sub-total

362,751

755,150

(20,582)

1,097,319

At 31 December 2019

818,690

755,150

19,132

1,592,972

At 1 January 2019
Additions to right-of-use assets
Depreciation charge for the year

Additions to right-of-use assets

Adjustments due to re-measurements
At 31 December 2020

(b) Lease liabilities

Interest expense (note 9)
Lease payments
Foreign currency losses
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18. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities (continued)
Motor Vehicles

Office Space

Stores

Total

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

818,690

755,150

19,132

1,592,972

Additions (New leases)

51,408

-

42,912

94,320

Interest expense (note 9)

72,301

70,567

1,670

144,538

(481,994)

(192,707)

(24,000)

(698,701)

(179,180)

-

-

(179,180)

45,421

(80,818)

-

(35,397)

-

(990)

-

(990)

(492,044)

(203,948)

20,582

(675,410)

326,646

551,202

39,714

917,562

At 1 January 2020

Lease payments
Disposals/terminations
Adjustments due to remeasurements
Other adjustments
Sub Total
At 31 December 2020

(c) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Interest charge on lease liabilities

144,538

130,895

Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets

580,147

445,564

-

532,323

77,712

67,813

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Lease interest expense paid

144,538

130,895

Lease principal payments

554,163

415,005

698,701

545,900

Expenses relating to short-term leases
Expenses relating to low value assets, excluding short-term leases of low value assets

(d) Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows

(e) Terms and payment schedule
The terms and conditions of lease liabilities are as follows:
31 December 2020
Nominal
rate

Lease liabilities

ON THE UGANDA SECURITIES EXCHANGE 2000 - 2020

12%

Year of
maturity

2020-24

31 December 2019

2020
Face
value

2020
Carrying
amount

2019
Face
value

2019
Carrying
amount

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

1,072,919

917,562

1,789,058

1,592,972

1,072,919

917,562

1,789,058

1,592,972
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18. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)
(f) Extension options
Some property leases contain extension options exercisable by the Company up to one year before the end of
the non‑cancellable contract period. Where practicable, the Company seeks to include extension options in new
leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Company and not by
the lessors. The Company assesses at the lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise
the extension options. The Company reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a
significant event or significant changes in circumstances within its control.
The Company has estimated that the potential future lease payments, should it exercise the extension option,
would result in an increase in lease liability of Ushs 732 million.
(g) Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
In the table below is a reconciliation of the movement in liabilities to cashflows from financing activities.
Lease
liabilities

Share capital

Revaluation
reserve

Retained
Earnings

Proposed
dividend

Total

Ushs '000

Ushs '000

Ushs '000

Ushs '000

Ushs '000

Ushs '000

At 1 January 2020

1,592,972

61,350

13,610,857

14,567,040

15,681,896

45,514,115

Payment of lease liabilities

(698,701)

-

-

-

-

(698,701)

-

-

-

(23,700)

(15,681,896)

(15,705,596)

(698,701)

-

-

(23,700)

(15,681,896)

(16,404,297)

-

-

-

-

-

-

94,320

-

-

-

-

94,320

(179,180)

-

-

-

-

(179,180)

(35,397)

-

-

-

-

(35,397)

(990)

-

-

-

-

(990)

144,538

-

-

-

-

144,538

23,291

-

-

-

-

23,291

-

-

(263,980)

297,674

19,926,480

19,960,174

917,562

61,350

13,346,877

14,841,014

19,926,480

49,093,283

2020

Dividend paid
Total changes from financing
cash flows
Other changes related to liabilities
Foreign exchange transactional loss
New leases
Terminations
Adjustments due to
remeasurements
Other adjustments
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Total other changes related to
liabilities
Total equity related other changes
At 31 December 2020
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18. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)
(h) Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities (continued)

2019

At 1 January 2019
Payment of lease liabilities

Lease
liabilities

Share capital

Revaluation
reserve

Retained
Earnings

Proposed
dividend

Total

Ushs '000

Ushs '000

Ushs '000

Ushs '000

Ushs '000

Ushs '000

495,653

61,350

12,464,760

14,280,481

13,741,984

41,044,228

(545,900)

-

-

-

-

-

(545,900)

-

72,885

Dividend paid

(545,900)

-

(13,741,984)

(13,741,984)

-

-

(13,741,984)

(14,287,884)

-

-

-

-

72,885

1,498,917

-

-

-

-

1,498,917

Financing lease costs

(59,478)

-

-

-

-

(59,478)

Interest expense on lease liabilities

130,895

-

-

-

-

130,895

1,643,219

-

-

-

-

1,643,219

-

-

1,146,097

286,559

15,681,896

17,114,552

1,592,972

61,350

13,610,857

14,567,040

15,681,896

45,514,115

Total changes from financing
cash flows
Other changes related to liabilities
Foreign exchange transactional loss
New leases

Total other changes related to
liabilities
Total equity related other changes
At 31 December 2019

19. (a) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Less: Provision for impairment losses
Trade receivables – net
Receivables from related companies (note 26 (iv))
Prepayments and other receivables
Other receivables

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

13,156,973

12,431,118

(14,419)

(6,216)

13,142,554

12,424,902

-

50,502

9,160,349

7,539,467

171,733

1,037,952

22,474,636

21,052,823

Credit risk, market risk and impairment losses
Information about the Company’s exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for trade receivables is
included in Note 5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
19. (b) Impairment provision reconciliation
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Opening balance

6,216

5,318

Additional provision – IFRS 9

8,203

898

Closing balance

14,419

6,216

Impairment of trade receivables was made based on a simplified approach measured at an amount equal to
lifetime credit loss. Historical credit loss experience of the trade receivables is also taken into consideration.
The carrying amounts of the above trade and other receivables approximate their fair values.
20. Cash at bank
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash at bank comprises the following:
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

14,583,813

12,755,541

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Trade payables

1,358,746

4,065,330

Amounts due to related companies (note 26 (iv))

1,296,072

2,841,332

Other payables and accrued expenses

6,106,636

4,471,468

8,761,454

11,378,130

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

5,235,626

6,061,070

849,963

1,215,714

-

-

Utilised during the year

(348,523)

(2,041,158)

At end of year

5,737,066

5,235,626

Bank balances

21. Trade and other payables

The carrying amounts of the above trade and other payables approximate their fair values.
22. Provisions for other liabilities
(a) Litigation provisions

At start of year
Additions
Unwind of discount

During the year, the Company was a litigant in several cases which arise from normal day to day operations. The
Directors and management believe the Company has strong grounds for success in a majority of the cases and are
confident that they should get a ruling in their favour and none of the cases individually or in aggregate would have
a significant impact on the Company’s operations.
The Directors have assessed all the cases outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and where considered necessary
based on the merits of each case, an appropriate provision has been booked in the Financial Statements. In arriving
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22. Provisions for other liabilities (continued)
(a) Litigation provisions (continued)
at the appropriate provisions, management makes judgements over the likely outcome of each case and an
estimate of the related costs based on legal advice.
The additions relate to incremental provisions on new cases for 2020 and interest on old cases. The provisions
released relate to cases discharged in 2020 and legal fees paid.
(b) Other provisions
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

427,996

388,187

7,640

48,219

(199,845)

(8,410)

At end of year

235,791

427,996

Total Provision

5,972,857

5,663,622

At start of year
Additions
Utilised during the year

Provisions, which represent liabilities that could be settled within the next twelve months during the ordinary
course of the Business relate to the Company’s obligations arising from past events. In the Directors’ opinion, the
actual liabilities that will be incurred by the Company in settling the above obligations will not differ materially from
the amounts provided for at year-end.
23. Contingent liabilities
(a) Legal claims
The Company’s contingencies mainly arise from litigations against and by the Company. Given the sensitive nature
of these legal cases, the Directors are of the opinion that disclosing the details of each case can be expected to
prejudice seriously the position of the Company with other parties. As such, that information has not been included
in the Financial Statements. Refer to Note 22 for details of litigation provisions.
(b) Tax disputes with Uganda Revenue Authority
The Company is subject to various taxes enshrined within the Income Tax Act and other rules issued by the Uganda
Revenue Authority (URA). The Directors make certain judgements when applying those laws to arrive at the tax
treatment of related goods and services and the potential impact on the Financial Statements.
The Company is currently involved in certain tax disputes with the URA, who issued assessments amounting to
Ushs 24.2 billion in 2019. The Directors objected to these assessments and as mandated by law, the Company had
to pay 30% of the assessed tax amounting to Ushs 7.2 billion before proceeding to the Tax Appeals Tribunal. The
Directors believe that this dispute will be determined in its favour. Accordingly, no provision for any liability relating
to this matter or impairment provision relating to the related tax deposit has been recorded in the Financial
Statements.
24. Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the statement of financial position date but not recognised in the Financial
Statements is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
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2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

44,371

44,371
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25. Cash generated from operations
Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations:
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

29,211,997

22,462,473

Interest expense (note 9)

144,538

130,895

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 17)

912,440

1,063,595

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 18(a))

580,147

445,564

Unrealised foreign exchange losses

(56,602)

12,993

(1,421,813)

(9,888,494)

(2,307,441)

3,763,048

27,063,266

17,990,074

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Changes in working capital
trade and other receivables
trade and other payables, and provisions
Cash generated from operations

26. Related party disclosures
The Company’s parent and ultimate controlling party is British American Tobacco Kenya plc, incorporated in the United
Kingdom.
The following transactions were carried out with related parties with whom the Company shares common ownership:
i) Purchase of goods and services
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

24,691,291

27,993,842

BASS Europe SRL

863,668

843,316

BASS Holdings Limited

105,474

488,999

BASS (GSD) Limited

1,451,441

1,024,652

BAT Exports Limited

513,982

-

6,602,243

7,592,633

British American Tabacco Kenya plc

BAT Area Limited
BAT South Africa (Proprietary) Limited
BAT Investments Limited

268,434

31,591

1,934,532

1,634,030

36,431,065

39,609,063

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

1,729,983

2,507,915

1,729,983

2,507,915

ii) Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term employment benefits
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26. Related party disclosures (continued)
iii) Directors’ remuneration
2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

Fees for services as a Director

149,374

111,123

Other emoluments (included in key management compensation above)

912,205

1,404,889

1,061,579

1,516,012

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

British American Tabacco Kenya plc

-

18,869

BAT South Africa (Proprietary) Limited

-

31,633

-

50,502

2020

2019

Ushs’ 000

Ushs’ 000

1,184,644

2,334,085

55,830

186,137

-

66,051

55,598

-

BAT Area Limited

-

40,906

BASS Europe SRL

-

214,153

1,296,072

2,841,332

iv) Outstanding balances arising from sale and purchase of goods/services

Due from related parties

Due to related parties
British American Tabacco Kenya plc
BAT (GSD) Limited
BAT Holdings Limited
BAT Exports Limited

The amounts due from related parties are neither secured nor impaired and are due for settlement within 12
months from the year end.
The amounts due to related parties are not secured against any of the Company’s assets, are interest free and are
repayable within 12 months from the year end
The carrying amounts of the above receivables and payables from related parties approximate their fair values.
27 Events after the reporting period
There are no reportable events after the reporting period.
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PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS AND SHARE DISTRIBUTION
Major shareholders as at 28 February 2021
Shareholder

No. of Shares

% Shareholding

34,356,000

70.00%

Precis

9,816,000

20.00%

SCBM RE Pictet and Cie (Europe)
S.A.A/C Kingsway Fund Frontier Consumer Franchises

4,265,915

8.69%

UAP Provincial Insurance Company Limited

50,000

0.10%

The Registered Trustees of Chandaria Foundation

27,000

0.06%

Goldstar Insurance Company Limited

22,655

0.05%

Tumwesigye Fred Bisamunyu

10,000

0.02%

Walji Rukiabai Pyarali

10,000

0.02%

Onen Perez M Oryem

10,000

0.02%

Gatare Tom

10,000

0.02%

48,577,570

98.98%

502,414

1.02%

49,079,984

100.00%

British American Tobacco Investments Ltd

Sub total
Other (1224) shareholders
Total

Summary of shareholders as at 28 February 2021
Shareholder

No. of Shareholders

No. of Shares

% Shareholding

East African Companies

36

150,217

0.31%

East African Individuals

1,170

463,862

0.95%

Foreign Companies

4

48,445,282

98.71%

Foreign Individuals

24

20,623

0.04%

1,234

49,079,984

100.00%

No. of Shareholders

No. of Shares

% Shareholding

931

107,236

0.22%

288

355,264

0.72%

5,001- 10,000

9

79,914

0.16%

10,001 - 100,000

3

99,655

0.20%

100,001 - 1,000,000

0

0

0.00%

Above 1,000,000

3

48,437,915

98.69%

1,234

49,079,984

100%

Total

Distribution of shareholders as at 28 February 2021
Shareholder
Less than 500
501 - 5,000

TOTALS

Directors’ shareholding as at 28 February 2021
Director’s Name
Tumwesigye Fred Bisamunyu

Shareholding
10,000
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PROXY FORM
To:
The Company Secretary
British American Tobacco Uganda Limited
10th Floor, Lotis Towers, Plot 16, Mackinnon Road, Nakasero
P.O. Box 7100, Kampala, Uganda
I/We

of P.O. Box

member(s) of British American Tobacco Uganda Limited, appoint

of ID/Passport Number

and P.O. Box

as my/our proxy, to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
27 May 2021 at 10:00 a.m, via electronic means and at any adjournment thereof.
As witness my/our hand(s) this

day of

SCD Account Number

Number of Shares held

(Signature)				(Signature)				
ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS CONSENT FORM
Please complete in BLOCK CAPITALS
Full name of Proxy(s):

Address:

Mobile Number

(Date)					(Signature)
Please tick ONE of the boxes below and return to:
Deloitte (Uganda) Limited, 3rd Floor, Rwenzori House,
1 Lumumba Avenue, Kampala, Uganda or alternatively
to the Registered Office of BAT Uganda.
Approval of registration
I/WE approve to register to participate in the virtual
Annual General Meeting to be held on 27 May 2021.
Consent for use of the mobile number provided
I/WE give my/our consent for the use of the mobile
number provided for purposes of voting at the AGM.

2021

NOTES:
1.

If a member is unable to attend this meeting personally, this Form of Proxy should be completed and
returned to Deloitte (Uganda) Limited, 3rd Floor, Rwenzori House, 1 Lumumba Avenue, Kampala, Uganda or
alternatively to the Registered Office of BAT Uganda, so as to arrive not later than 2:30 p.m. on 24 May 2021,
i.e. 48 hours before the meeting or any adjournment thereof for the proxy to be valid.
Signed proxy forms may also be emailed to shareholders@deloitte.co.ug in PDF format.

2. In the case of the appointer being a corporate body, then this proxy form must be executed under its common
seal or signed on its behalf by an officer of that company or an authorized attorney for that company.
3. As a shareholder you are entitled to appoint one or more proxies to exercise all or any of your shareholder rights
to attend and to speak and vote on your behalf at the meeting. To appoint a proxy, insert the full name of your
proxy in the space provided. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.
4. Completion and submission of the form of proxy will not prevent you from attending the meeting and voting at
the meeting in person, in which case any votes cast by your proxy will be excluded.
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HEAD OFFICE

British American Tobacco Uganda Limited
10th Floor, Lotis Towers
Plot 16, Mackinnon Road, Nakasero
P.O. Box 7100
Kampala, Uganda
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